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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

MAILING AODRESS
P.O. BOX 189

SWAINSBORO, GEORGIA 30401

The Commissioners of Roads and Revenues
Emanuel County, Georgia

Ihave audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of Emanuel County, Georgia, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2012, which
collectively comprise the County's basic financial statements as listed in the table ofcontents. These
financial statements are the responsibility of Emanuel County, Georgia, management. My responsibility
is to express opinions on these financial statements based on my audit.

Iconducted my audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that Iplan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. Ibelieve that my audit provides areasonable basis for my opinions.

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely
presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Emanuel
County Georgia as of September 30,2012, and the respective changes in financial position and cash
flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, Ihave also issued my report dated March 13,2013,
on my consideration of the County's internal control over financial reporting and on my tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of my testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of my
audit.

The management's discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information are not arequired part
of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. Ihave applied certain limited procedures, which
consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentauon
of the required supplementary information. However, Idid not audit the information and express no
opinion on it.



My audit wasconducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise Emanuel County, Georgia's basic financial statements. The combiningand individual nonmajor
fund financial statements, the SPLOST schedule and other supplementary information are presented for
purposes of additional analysis andare nota required part of the basic financial statements. The
combiningandindividualnonmajor fund financial statements andothersupplementary information have
beensubjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in my
opinion, are fairly stated in allmaterial respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken asa
whole.

^f
March 13, 2013



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited) Emanuel County, Georgia
As ofand For the Year Ended September 30,2012

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Within this section of Emanuel County's (the County) annual financial report, the County's management is pleased to
provide this narrative discussion and analysis of the financial activities of the County for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2012. The County's financial performance is discussed and analyzed within the context of the accompanying financial
statements and disclosures following this section.

Financial Highlights

• The County's assets exceeded its liabilities by $21,011,511 (net assets) for the fiscal year reported.

• Total net assets are comprised of the following:

(1) Capital assets, net of related debt, of $8,112,834 include property andequipment, net of accumulated depreciation,
and reduced for outstandingdebt related to thepurchase or construction of capital assets.

(2) Net assets of $3,383,832 are restricted by constraints imposed from outside the County such as debt covenants,
grantors, laws, or regulations.

(3) Unrestricted net assets of $9,514,845 represent the portion available to maintain the County's continuing
obligations to citizens and creditors.

• The County's governmental funds reported total ending fund balance of $11,510,331 this year. This compares to the
prioryearending fund balance of $12,879,931, showing an increase of $1,369,600 during the current year. Unassigned
fund balance of $7,996,511 for fiscal year 2012 showsa $276548 increase from the prior year.

• At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $7,996,511, or 90% of total
General Fund expenditures, an increase from the 70.1% at September 30, 2011.

• Overall, the County continues to maintain a strong financial position, in spite of a somewhat depressed economy.

The above financial highlights are explained in more detail in the "financial analysis" section of this document.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This Management Discussion and Analysis document introducesthe County's basic financial statements. The basic financial
statements include: (1) government-wide financial statements, (2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes to the basic
financial statements. The County also includes in this report additional information to supplement the basic financial
statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The County's annual report includes two government-wide financial statements. These statements provide both long-term
and short-term information about the County's overall financial status. Financial reporting at this level uses a perspective
similar to that found in the private sector with its basis in accrual accountingand elimination or reclassification of activities
between funds.

The first of these government-wide statements is the Statement of Net Assets. This is the government-wide statement of
position presenting information that includes all of the County's assets and liabilities, with the difference reported as net
assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the
County as a whole is improving or deteriorating. Evaluation of the overall health of the County would extend to other
nonfinancial factors such as diversification of the taxpayerbase or the condition of County infrastructure, in addition to the
financial information provided in this report.



MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited) Emanuel County, Georgia
Asofand For the Year Ended September 30,2012
The second government-wide statement is the Statement of Activities, which reports how the County's net assets changed
during the current fiscal year. All current year revenues and expenses are included regardless of when cash is received or
paid. An important purpose of the design of the statement of activities is to show the financial reliance of the County's
distinct activities or functions on revenues provided by the County's taxpayers.

Both government-wide financial statements distinguishgovernmental activities of the County that are principally supported
by sales taxes and from business-type activities that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through
user fees and charges. Governmental activities include general government, judicial, public safety, public works, health and
welfare, culture and recreation and housing and development. Business-type activities include the development authorities
and the revolving loan fund.

The government-wide financial statements are presented on pages 14 & 15 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is an accountability unit used to maintain control over resources segregated for specific activities or objectives. The
County uses funds to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related laws and regulations. Within the basic
financial statements, fund financial statements focus on the County's most significant funds rather than the County as a
whole. Major funds are separately reported while all others are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual
fund data for nonmajor funds is provided in the form of combiningstatements in a later section of this report.

The Countyhas three kinds of funds:

Governmental funds are reported in the fund financial statements and encompass the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, the focus is very different with fund
statements providing a distinctive view of the County's governmental funds. These statements report short-term fiscal
accountability focusing on the use of spendable resources and balances of spendable resources available at the end of the
year. They are useful in evaluating annual financing requirements of governmental programs and the commitment of
spendable resources for the near-term.

Since the government-wide focus includes the long-term view, comparisons between these two perspectives may provide
insight into the long-term impact of short-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the
governmental fund operatingstatement provide a reconciliation to assist in understanding the differences between these two
perspectives.

The basic governmental fund financial statements are presented on pages 16 -19 of this report.

Individual fund information for nonmajor governmental funds is found in combining statements in a later section of this
report

Proprietary funds are reported in the fund financial statements and generally report services for which the County charges
customers a fee. The three County proprietary funds are classified as enterprise funds. This enterprise fund essentially
encompasses the same functions reported as business-type activities in the government-wide statements.

The basic enterprise fund financial statements are presented on pages 20- 22 of this report.

Fiduciary fund type includes the County's agency funds, which temporarily hold resources primarily for the County's
constitutional officers. There is one basic statement,a "statement of fiduciary assets and liabilities" which reports the various
agency funds' assets and liabilities. This statement is presented on page 23.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

The accompanying notes to the basic financial statements provide information essential to a full understanding of the
government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the basic financial statements begin on page 24 of this report.



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited)
As of andForthe YearEndedSeptember 30,2012

Emanuel County, Georgia

RequiredSupplementary Information (RSI)

Budgetary comparison schedule is included as"required supplementary information" for thegeneral fund. Thisschedule is
presented on page 44.

Other Supplementary Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain supplementary
information concerning the County's budget presentations. Budgetary comparison schedules for all other governmental funds
can be found in a later section of this report. These statements and schedules demonstrate compliance with the County's
adopted and final revised budget. As discussed, the County reports major funds in the basic financial statements. This
schedule includes a schedule of the comparison of the general fund budget and actual in detail. Combining and individual
statements and schedules for nonmajor funds are presented in a subsequent section of this report beginning on page 45.

Financial Analysis of the County as a Whole

The County implemented the new financial reporting model used in this report beginning with the current fiscal year ended
September 30, 2012. Over time, as year-to-year financial information is accumulated on a consistent basis, changes in net
assets may be observed and used to discuss the changing financial position of the County as a whole.

The County's net assets at fiscal year-end are $21,011,511. The following table provides a summary of the County's net
assets:

Summary of Net Assets

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

Assets:

Current assets S 12,186,902 S 13,104,680 $ 2,137,205 $ 3,520,435 S 14,324,107 $ 16,625,115

Non-current

Other - - 733,790 - 733,790 -

Capital assets 12,604,567

24,791,469

13,332,400

26,437,080

- - 12,604367

27,662,464

13,332,400

Total assets 2,870,995 3320,435 29,957315

Liabilities:

Current liabilities 1,221,823 2,096,060 152332 562,933 1374,155 2,658,993

Long-term liabilities 5,071,798 5,679,508 305,000 436,568 5,376,798 6,116,076

Total liabilities 6,293,621 7,775,568 457332 999,501 6,750,953 8,775,069

Net assets:

Invested in capital assets,
net of debt 8,112,834 8,562,926 - - 8,112,834 8362,926

Restricted 3,383,832 4,979,213 - - 3,383,832 4,979,213
Unrestricted 7,001,182 5,119,373 2,513,663 2320,934 9314,845 7,640307

Total net assets $ 18,497,848 $ 18,661,512 $ 2,513,663 $ 2,520,934 $ 21,011,511 S 21,182,446

The County continues to maintain a high current ratio. The current ratio compares current assets to current liabilities and is
an indication of the ability to pay current obligations. The current ratio for governmental activities is 10 to 1 in fiscal year
2012 as compared to 5.8 to 1 in fiscal year 2011.



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited) Emanuel County, Georgia
As ofandFor the YearEnded September30,2012

The current ratio forbusiness-type activities is 14to 1 in fiscal year 2012 ascompared to6.3 to1 in fiscal year 2011. For the
County overall, the current ratio is 10.4 to 1 in fiscal year 2012 ascompared to 5.9to 1 in fiscal year 2011. These ratios are
very strong.

The governmental activities net assets decreased $163,664 and decreased by just $7,271 for business-type activities. The
County's overallfinancial position decreased by $170,935 duringfiscalyear2012.

Note that approximately 43.9% of the governmental activities' net assets are tied up incapital. The County uses these capital
assets to provide services to its citizens. Business-type activities "investment in capital assets, net of related debt" is zero
since allof these capital assets arezeroas they arefully depreciated and they have nooutstanding debt.

(This page continued on thesubsequentpage)



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited)
As ofand For the YearEndedSeptember30,2012

Emanuel County, Georgia

The following table provides a summary of theCounty's changes innetassets:

[Revenues:
| Program:
! Charges for services
! Operating grants
1 Capital grants

General:

| Taxes

I Other

i

jTotal revenues

!Program Expenses:

j
General government

Judicial

Public safety

| Public works

j Health and welfare

I Culture and recreation

Housing and develop ment

Interest

Development authorities

'Total expenses

!Excess of revenues

; over expenses

jBeginning net assets

iEnding net assets

Summary of Changes in Net Assets

JUL_„

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

!

$ 2,210,566

279,177

82305

,Ti] $ 2,156,283 !f $ 33,467j J $
688,000 | 287,911 I i

436,844 [ j

j $ 2,244,033 Is $ 2,156,283

575,050 | J
831,607 ! !

567,088 jj 1,263,050

10,068,635

222,152

10,027,563 j

519,912 |

12,862,835 13,391,758
-]>••

2,777,081 i I 2,814,038

| 1,063,727 | j 1.225,870 jj
| 3,311,303 \I 3,217,307 [j
! 4,777,017 ![ 2,434,711 jj

1,222,310 ! I
474367 1{

214,861 | [
473,818

288,970

119.722

881^474 !j
232,654 j|

21,107 5,380

519,149 831,607

10,068,635 jj 10,027,563 j
243,259 jj 525,292 j

779,329 1,412,037 M 13,642,164 ff 14,803,795

;._!

H--

786.600 1,939,294

2^77,081 U ^23^038 •
1,063,727~!| 1,225,870 j
3,311303 [j_ 3,217,307 j
4,777,017 jj 2,434.711 '

214,861 j! 1,222310 !
473,818 jj
288,970~[[
119,722 jI

474367

881,474 j
?32!6i4 i

786,600 !; 1,939,294 ;

13,026,499 12,502,731 jI 786,600 j j 1,939,294 j j 13,813,099 j! 14,442,025 j

(163,664); ! 889j027_Li PjP^< \ (527«^7)iJ (170,935) 361,770

18,661312 17,772.485 2320,934 3,048,191 21,182,446 if 20,820,676

$ 18,497,848 | j $ 18,661,512 j| $ 2313,663 ; I $ 2,520,934 j j $21,011,511 {! $21,182,446
" • •• ,t-,~~ ' '- •*"~i— ' ~~*-'— ' ,-: —



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited) Emanuel County, Georgia
As ofand For the YearEnded September30,2012

GOVERNMENTAL REVENUES

The County is heavily reliant on property taxes and sales taxes to support governmental operations and capital. Property
taxes totaling $5,275,785 andprovided 41%of the County's totalgovernmental revenues for fiscal year2012 as compared to
$5301,606 or 35.7% forfiscal year 2011. Sales taxes are the second largest revenue source with approximately $4.1 million
of revenues or 32.2% of the total as compared to approximately $4 millionof revenuesor 27.2% of the total for fiscal year
2011. Because of the County's healthy financial position, we have been able to earn $20,629 in unrestricted interest earnings
to support governmental activities as compared to $74,140 in fiscal year 2011.

The County recognized operatinggrantsof $279,177as follows:

• EMA grant ($2,170) - a federal emergency management agency
• State Judicial Council of Georgia($5,050) - for a juvenile offenderprogram
• Rural fire department ($58300) - to upgrade equipment
• CCJC Byrnegrant ($213,457) - to support the drug taskforce.

The County recognized $9,205 in restricted investment earnings and $72300 from an EMS grant from the Georgia Trauma
Commission to purchase an ambulance.

Also, note thatprogram revenues coveronly 19.7% of governmental operating expenses, up from 20.9% in fiscal year2011.
This means that the government's taxpayers and the County's other general governmental revenues fund 80.3% of the
governmental activities. As a result, the general economy and the county businesses have a major impact on the County's
revenue streams.

GOVERNMENTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Approximately 63.6%of the County's expenses are usedfor public safety and publicworks. Public safetyspendsover$3.3
million or 25.4% of total governmental activitiesexpenses and the public works function spends approximately $4.8 million
or 36.7% of the same total amount. The general government function totals approximately $2.7 million or 21.3% of total
governmental expenses.

This table presents the cost of each of the County's programs, including the net costs (i.e., total cost less revenues generated
by the activities). The net costs illustrate the financial burden that was placed on the County's taxpayers by each of these
functions.

Governmental Activities

Total Cost of Services Net Cost of Services

2012 2011 2012 2011

General government 5! 2,777,081 $ 2,814,038 $ 2,200,222 $ 2,489,614

Judicial 1,063,727 1,225,870 1,063,727 589,885

Public safety 3,311,303 3,217,307 1,725,277 1,625,000

Public works 4,777,017 2,434,711 4,367,854 2,143,144
Health and welfare 214,861 1,222,310 214,861 1,222,310

Culture and recreation 473,818 474,367 473,818 474,367

Housing and development 288,970 881,474 288,970 881,474

Interest 119,722 232,654 119,722 232,654

Total $ 13,026,499 $ 12,502,731 $ 10,454,451 $ 9,658,448



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited) Emanuel County, Georgia
As ofand For the YearEnded September30,2012

Alterreducing gross expenses by program revenues,public safety totals 163% of the net cost of services, down from 16.8%
of the gross costs because this function generates approximately $1.6 million in charges for services, which includescharges
from prisoner care and fines. The net public works costs total 41.8% of the total of these costs, as compared to 22.2% of
gross costs.

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

The County operates three business-type activities, two development authorities and a revolving loan program. The
Development Authority of Emanuel County and the City of Swainsboro administers most development projects while the
Emanuel County DevelopmentAuthority provides the financing of the project.

DevelopmentAuthorityofEmanuel Countyand the CityofSwainsboro—This Authority promotes business and industry in
the County. In fiscal year 2012, the "Development Authority ofEmanuel County and the CityofSwainsboro" fund received
grants from the County totaling $287,911, of which $108,234 from the chamber of commerce and the balance from the
development authority, both grants for operating expenses. A capital grant of $436,844 from SPLOST funds was recognized
from the County for various projects. This fund reported an operating loss of $664,639 before non-operating revenue
(expense)and a net increase in net assets of $45,021. Total net assets at September 30,2012 were $1,626,039.

Emanuel County Development Authority - This Authority promotes business and industry in the County by providing
financing and incentive packages. In fiscal year2012, the Emanuel County Development Authority" fund incurred $33,467
on interest expense. This fund reported an operating loss of $18,825 before non-operating revenue (expense) and no change
in netassetsfor this fiscal year endedSeptember 30,2012. This fund retired debt principal of $350,000. This debt relates to
promotion of industrial development. This fund reports endingnet assetsof $396,461.

Emanuel County RevolvingLoan Fund - This fund promotes business and industry by providing direct loans to businesses
located with the County. At September30, 2012, this fund reports net assets of $491,163, which is cash of just $173 and a
revolving loan receivable of $490,990 from Hot Set, a German Company.

Financial Analysis of the County's Funds

Governmental Funds

As discussed, governmental funds are reported in the fund statements with a short-term, inflow and outflow of spendable
resources focus. This information is useful in assessing resources available at the end of the year in comparison with
upcoming financing requirements. Governmental funds reported ending fund balancesof $11,510331 at September30,2012
as compared to $12,824,133 at September30, 2011. Of this year-end total, $7,996,511 is unassigned indicatingavailability
for continuing County service requirements. In addition, $129,988 is classified as nonspendable for inventory and restricted
is $3,383,832, most for capital projects.

The total ending fund balances of governmentalfunds report a decreaseof $1,369,600or 10.6% below the prior year amount.
The general fund accounted for an increase of $281379 and an increase in the SPLOST fund of $1,676,436.

Major Governmental Funds

General Fund - The general fund is the County's primary operating fund and the largest source of day-to-day service
delivery. The general fund's fund balance increased by $281,579 or 3.6% as compared to a decrease of $ 270,258 or 33% in
fiscal year 2011.

Property taxes in fiscal year 2012 decreased by $281,579 or 1.7%. The general fund's local option sales taxes increased
$61,276 or 4.6% above the fiscal year 2011 amount. Theincrease in fiscal year 2011 was $81,651. The insurance premium
tax increased $33,675 or 6.8%. This increase relates to increased actual collections in the unincorporated areas of the
County.
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User charges for public safety decreased from fiscal year 2011 by $136,149 or 21.7%. Fines and forfeitures decreased by
about$41,044. Mostother revenue streams wereconsistent with that of fiscal year 2011. In total, revenues were$284,969
or 3%.

On the expenditure side, total general fund expenditures decreased $2,643,827 or 22.9% less than fiscal year 2011, primarily
related to reduced capital outlay costs.

Other expenditures in superior court were $206,320 or 46.9% below the fiscal year 2011 amount. In fiscal year 2011, this
activity incurred costs relating to a DA grant, which was not duplicated in fiscal year 2012. Reduced capital ouday occurred
in the functions of solid waste and health and welfare. Economic development costs were reduced $495,673 due to a
$500,000 payment made to Nordson.

The general fund's ending unassigned fund balance of $7,996,511 at September 30, 2012 is very strong, representing the
equivalentof 89.9% of annual general fund expendituresas compared to 60.8% at September30, 2011.

SPLOST Fund - This fund accounts for the voter approved special purpose local option sales taxes to retire $8,765,000 in
generalobligation sales tax bonds. The fund also accounts for the constructionof approved projects. In fiscal year 2012, the
County incurred capital expenditures of $478,179.

This fitnd also shared this revenue stream with cities located within the County totaling $2,227,657 and incurred debt service
costs of $1,794,722 At September 30,2012, the fund balance was $3,120,650.

The Proprietary Funds

The proprietary fund statements share the same focus as the government-wide statements, reporting both short-term and long-
term information about financial status. Therefore, the analysis is presented above.

Budgetary Highlights

The General Fund —We did find it necessary to amend the fiscal year 2012 revenue budget downward by just $35,016 or
4/10 of 1%. In total, the County realized 102.1% of the estimated revenues as compared to 102.9% of the estimated
revenues. Fines and forfeitures were $61,816 below the final 2012 budget due to reduced state court fines.

Most revenue sources were similar to the adopted budget.

The expenditure side of the budget for the general fund was under spent by $264,747 or 2.9%. Within the general
government function, the financial administration budget was underspentby $51,058 or 12.8%due to a $50,000contingency
budget, of which only $5,000was expended. The debt servicepayments for a motorgrader were not budgeted.

The total public safety budget was underspent by $31,039. Uniform patrol costs were $19,843 over budget due to purchased
services and general supplies, which were over the budget. Jail operations were underspent by $42,717. The rural fire
department was over budget by $55351. Emergency medicalserviceswere below the final budget was S25,378.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

The County's investment in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, for governmental and business-type activities as
of September 30, 2012, was $12,604367. The business-type activities capital assets are fully depreciated. See Note 3-C for
additional information about changes in capital assets during the fiscal yearand outstanding at theend of theyear.

10
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The following table provides a summary of capital asset activity.

Capital Assets

Governmental Activities

2012 2011

Business Activities Total1

2012 2011 2012 2011

Non-depreciable assets:
Land S 878,274 $ 878,274 $ 5 -

$ 878,274 S 878,274

Depreciable assets:
Buildings and improvements
Equipment andvehicles
Infrastructure

9,487395
7,456,681

1,869,399

18,813,675

9,460,439
7,693,170

1,618,154

18,771,763

34322 34322

9,487395

7,491,203

1,869399

18,848,197

9,460,439

7,727,692
1,618,154

Total depreciable assets 34,522 34,522 18,806,285

Lessaccumulated depreciation 7,087382 6,696,435 34,522 34,522 7,121,904 6,730,957

Bookvalue- depreciable assets 11,726,293

38%

12,075328

36%

. . 11,726,293

38%

12,075328

Percentage depreciated 100% 100% 36%

Book value - all assets S 12.604,567 S 12,953,602 $ $ -
S 12,604367 $ 12,953,602

At September 30, 2012, the depreciable capital assets for governmental activities were 38% depreciated. This compares
closely to the September 30,2011 percentage. This comparison indicates that the County is replacing itsassets at the same
rate as theyare depreciating whichis a positive indicator.

The major increases in governmental activities capital assets were in equipment and vehicles were for the addition of an
ambulance. Thedeletions included the saleof two garbage trucks and the totaling of a two crown vievehicles.

The addition to the infrastructure account of $251,245 was for road improvements.

Long-term Debt

During fiscal year 2012, the County retired $1,660,000 ofgeneral obligation bonds. At the end of the fiscal year, the County
had general obligation sales taxbonds outstanding of $3,090,000.

(this page continued on the subsequent page)
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MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited)
As ofandFor the YearEndedSeptember 30,2012

The following table presents comparisonsof the County's outstandingdebt.

Outstanding Borrowings

Emanuel County, Georgia

Governmental

Activities

Business-type
Activities Totals

2012 2011

%

Change

2012 2011 2012 2011

Capital leases S -
$ 1379,847 S - S - $ - $ 1,379,847 100%

Generalobligation bonds 3,060,000 3,190,000 - - 3,060,000 3,190,000 -4%

Revenue bonds - - 385,000 735,000 385,000 735,000 -48%

Notes - - 51351. 102,868 - 102,868 -100%

Landfill closure and

postclosurecare 1,134,107 1,187,857 - - 1,134,107 1,187,857 -5%

Compensated absences

$

167.455

4361.562

149.759

$ 5,907,463

. .

$

167,455

4,746362 $

149,759

6,745,331

12%

Total S 436,551 $ 837,868 -30%

See Note III-F for additional information about the County's long-term debt.

Economic Conditions Affecting the County

The County is physically located in the mid-eastern portion of the Stateof Georgia, 182 milessoutheast of the State capitol,
Atlanta, Georgia. The County's land area is 686 square miles with31.8 personsper square mile. This compares favorable
with the State ofGeorgia's rate of 141.4persons per square mile. We are a rural County. The 2012 population was 22,567,
which has risen from 21,837 in 2000. The County seat is Swainsboro, Georgia, which makes up approximately 31% of the
County's population. Services are the largestemploymentsector providing70% of the jobs. Statewide, the service industry
provides 83% of the jobs.

Since the County relies primarily on property and sales taxes for its operating revenue, changes in the economy definitely
affect these revenue streams. Since sales taxes are, an "elastic revenue stream," in a sluggish economy, the sales tax revenues
is reduced immediately. Property taxes are considered "inelastic" in the short-term; this revenue stream is more stable.
Fortunately, for the County, because of its revenuestream makeup, it is able to survive financially in a slow economy.

The 2008 County per capita personal income is $24,200, or 66.6% of uie State of Georgia per capita income and 60% of the
United States per capita personal income. Our County is 125th out of159 counties in Georgia. Out of approximately 3,000
counties in the United States, our County ranks 2,848 , or one of the poorest counties nationwide. Per capita income is total
personal income (including wages, dividends, interest, rent, and governmentpayments) divided by the total population. It is
commonly used as an indicator of the quality of consumer markets and the economic well being of a community.

In September 2012, County employment totaled 8,948. At September 30, 2012, the unemployment rate in our County was
10.4% as compared to the State ofGeorgia's rate, which is 8.6%.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Unaudited) Emanuel County, Georgia
Asofand Forthe Year Ended September 30,2012
Contacting the County's Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the County's finances, comply with finance-related laws
and regulations, anddemonstrate the County's commitment to public accountability. If you have questions about this report
orwould like to request additional information, contact the County's Administrator at 101 North Main Street, Swainsboro,
Georgia 30401.
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Assets

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3A)
Restricted cash

Investments

Receivables:

Accounts

Propertytaxes
Sales taxes

Intergovernmental
Interest

Notes receivable

Interfund

Inventory
Prepaid items

Total Current Assets

Non-current Assets

Notes receivable

Capitalassets (Note 3E)
Nondepreciable
Depreciable, net

Total Non-current Assets

Total Assets

Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued interest

Escrow payable
Intergovernmental payable
Compensatedabsencespayable
Capital leases payable
Notes payable
Bonds payable

Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities (Note 3H) (net ofcurrentportion)
Landfill postclosurecarecosts payable
Compensated absences payable
Capital leases payable
Bonds payable

Total Long-Term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Net Assets

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt (Note 31)
Restricted for

Capital projects
Specific health program
Publicsafety

Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

Emanuel County, Georgia
StatementofNetAssets

September30,2012

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Unit

$ 3,959,625 S 823,176 !i 4,782,801 S 556,796

53,458 - 53,458 -

6,165,511
-

6,165,511
-

184,682 . 184.682 49,891
232,943 - 232,943 -

718,454 - 718.454 -

588,966 4,222 593,188 -

- 4,651 4,651 -

- 131,550 131^50 -

153,275 (153,275) - -

129,988 - 129,988 -

- 1326.881

2.137,205

1.326.881

14324.107

-

12.186,902 606,687

833,790 833,790

878,274

11,726,293
-

878,274

11,726,293

12,604.567 833.790 13.438357

24.791.469 2.970,995 27,762.464

279,151
60,268
32,462

128,455

14,060
6,721

293,211
66,989
32.462

128,455

125,584
131,277
149,626
315,000

51,551

80.000

125,584
182,828
149,626
395.000

1.221.823 152332 1374,155

1,134,107
41,861

1,120.830
2,775.000 305.000

1,134,107
41,861

1,120,830

3,080,000

5.071.798 305.000 5376,798

6,293,621 457332 6.750.953

8,112,834
-

8,112,834

3,121,015
- 3,121,015

262,817

7.001.182 2,513.663

262,817
9.514.845

S 18.497.848 S 2J 13,663 51 21,011,511

14

606,687

948

19,407

20355

52,196

52.196

72451

534,136

534,136



Expenses

2,777,081

1,063,727
3.311,303
4,777,017

214,861
473,818
288,970
119,722

13,026,499

700,841

85,759

Function/Program
Primary Government
Governmental Activities

Genera) government
Judicial

Publicsafety
Public works

Health and welfare

Culture and recreation

Housingand development
Interest

Total Governmental AcUvlUes

Business-type Activities
Development Authority of Emanuel
Countyand the City of Statesboro

Emanuel CountyDevelopment Authority
Emanuel CountyRevolvingLoan

Total Business-typeActivities

Total Primary Government

Component Unit
Departmentof Public Health

786.600

S 13.813,099

s 993,297

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

Emanuel County, Georgia
Statement ofActivities

For the YearEndedSeptember 30,2012

Program Revenues
Charges for

Services

and Fines

Operating Grants,
Contributions Capital Grants
and Interest and Contributions

511,139

1,372,569

326,858

2,210.566

33,467

33,467

65,720

213,457

279,177

287,911

287.911

82,305

82.305

436,844

436,844

$ 2.244.033 $ 567.088 S 519.149

$ 236,219 $ 827.386 $

General Revenues

Property taxesleviedfor general government purposes
Sales taxes

Insurance premium tax
Other taxes

Unrestrictedinvestmentearnings
Miscellaneous

Total General Revenues

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets Beginningof Ycnr

Net Assets End of Year

15

Net (Expense)
Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

Primary Government
Governmental Business-type Component

Activities Activities Total Units

$ (2,200.222) $ $ (2,200,222) S
(1,063,727) - (1,063,727) .

(1,725,277) - (1,725,277) .

(4.367,854) y (4367,854) .

(214,861) • (214,861) -

(473,818) - (473,818) .

(288,970) - (288,970) .

(119.7221
- 019.7221 -

(10,454.451)

(10,454,451)

5,275,785
4.142.172

526,602
124,076

20.629

201423

10,290,787

(163,664)

18,661412

18,497.848

23,914

(52,292)

(28,378)

(28,378)

895

20,212

21,107

(7.271)

2,520,934

2,513,663

(10,454,451)

23,914
(52,292)

(28,378)

(10.482,829)

5,275.785

4,142,172

526,602
124,076

21424
221.735

10,311,894

(170,935)

21,182.446

2I.0114H

70,308

1,410

507

1,917

72,225

461,911

S34.136



Assets

Cash andcashequivalents
Restricted cash

Investments

Receivables:

Accounts

Property taxes
Sales taxes

Intergovernmental
Interfund

Inventory

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued expenditures payable
Escrow payable
Interfund payable
Deferred revenue

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances

Nonspendable
Restricted

Unassigned

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

Emanuel County, Georgia
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds

September 30,2012
(With Comparative Totals at Setember 30,2011)

General

$ 2,123,059
53,458

5,152,430

53,878

232,943

238,424

526,602
211,161

129,988

2012 2011

SPLOST

East Central

Georgia Other Total Total
Drug Task Governmental Governmental Governmental

Force Funds Funds Funds

$ 1,627439 $ 208,662 $ 365

1,013,081

34,234 96470

480.030

62,364

S 8,721,943 $ 3,120,650 $ 305,260 J_ 96,935

$ 3,959,625 % 6,776.024

53,458 37,069

6,165411 4,505.230

184,682 109,229
232,943 187,928

718,454 721482

588,966 602,008

211,161 275,857

129,988 124,956

$ 12,244,788 $ 13339.883

S 274,008

54,853

57,886

208,697

595.444

129,988

7,996411

8,126.499

$ 8.721,943

3,120,650

3,120,650

3,120,650

16

128,455

128,455

176,805

176,805

305.260 $

5,143 $ 279,151 S 148,677

5,415 60,268 117,166

- 128,455 6,765

- 57,886 18,916

- 208,697 168,428

734,457 459,952

129.988
3383,832

7,996411

124,956
5,035,011

7,719.964

11410331 12.879,931

$ 12,244,788 $ 13,339.883

10458

86,377

86.377

96,935



Emanuel County, Georgia
Reconciliation ofthe Balance Sheet ofGovernmental Funds

to the Government-wide Statement ofNet Assets
September 30,2012

Total Governmental Fund Balances $ 11,510,331

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources and
therefore are not reported in the funds.

Cost of capital assets $ 19,691,949
Less accumulated depreciation (7,087,382) 12,604,567

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and
therefore are deferred in the funds.

Propertytaxes 208,697

Liabilities not due and payable in thecurrent period and therefore are not reported in
the governmental fund balance sheets but are reported on the government-wide
statement of net assets.

Bondspayable $ (3,090,000)
Capitalleasespayable (1,252,107)
Accrued interest (32,462)
Notes payable (149,626)
Landfill postclosure carepayable (1,134,107)
Compensated absences payable (167,445) (5,825,747)

Net Assets of Governmental Activities $ 18,497,848

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Revenue*

Taxes

Intergovernmental
licenses and permits
ChargesTorservices
Fines and forfeitures

Investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current:

Generalgovernment
Judicial

Publicsafely
Puhliu works

Health and welfare
Culture and recreation
Housing anddevelopment

IntcrgorernrocnUl
Capital Outlay
Debt Service!

Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges
liond Issuance costs

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency)or Ret routs
Over Hinder) Expenditures

Other FinancingSources(Uses)
Inceptionof capitallease
Issuanceof long-term bonds
Inception of long-termloan
Proceeds from thesaleof capital assets
Transfers in

Transfers out

Total Other Financing Sources(Uses)

Net Change la Fund Balances

Fund Balances Beginning of Year

Fund Balances Gad ofYear

Emanuel County, Georgia
StatementofRevenues, Expenditures andChanges InFundBalances

Governmental Funds

Forthe YearEndedSeptember 30,2012
(WUh Comparative Totals FartheYear Ended Seottnber 30,2011)

2012 2011
East Central

Georgia Other Total Total
2000 Drug Task Governmental Governmental Governmental

General SPLOST Force Funds Funds Funds

S 7,266/133 * 2,762433 $ $ S 10,028466 $ 9,992410
65,720 72400 213,457 - 351,677 688,00)
21,250

• - • 21,250 20,025
1,1553)6

- - 3B8.477 1543.683 1,233,829
401,726

- • 491,726 532,770
20^55 9,805 74 - 30,434 74,140

277.048

2.844.638

78.382 - 355.430 174.657

9,297.538 291.913 388.477 12322466 12.713.932

2,380,828 . .

2,380,828 2,461,612
986,985

- - 986,985 1.154,199
2,248,564

- 296,870 490,219 3.03$,653 2,380,404
2.231,023 20,516

- • 2,251,539 1,710,125
198,104

- • • 198,104 1.205453
462,939

- - - 462,939 457,658
259,051

- - 259,051 849,195
• 2,227,657

- - ^227,657 295492
478,179

" *
478.179 2,817,444

102,791 1.734,950 - . 1,837,741 1,751,829
27.488 59,772

- • 87.260 183,820
" • - 48.834

H.897,773

13,770

(131.956)

(118,186)

281,579

7.844.920

4421,074

(1,676.436)

(1,676,436)

4,797.086

296,870

Ji2571

(4.957)

181.762

490.219

(101,742)

131,956

131,956

30,214

56.163

14.205.936

(1.383470) (2.600.133)

1,390.690

1460,000
199.626

13,770

131.956

(131.956)

866,000

(102.751)

13,770 3.913.565

(1469,600)

12.879,931

1.313,432

11.566.499

See accompanying noteslo thebask financial statements
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Emanuel Comity, Georgia
Reconciliation ofthe Statement ofRevenues, Expenditures and Changes

inFundBalances of Governmental Funds to the Government-wide Statement ofActivities
For the YearEndedSeptember30,2012

NetChanges In Fund Balances -TotalGovernmental Funds $ (1,369,600)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of activities are different because

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures on the governmental fund type
operating statement. However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated
overtheirestimated useful livesas depreciation expense. This is the amount by whichcapitalized
capital outlayexceeded depreciation expense in the current period.

Depreciation expense $ (761,526)
Capital outlay 427,303 (334,223)

The bookvalue of capital assets soldare reported on the government-wide statement of aaivities
but not reported in the governmental fund's operating statement lessbookvalue of traded-in asset
capitalized. (393,610)

Transfers between governmental funds are reported in thegovernmental funds operating statement
butare eliminated on the government-wide statement of activities:

Transfers in $ (131,956)
Transfers out 131,956

Repayment of long-term debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the
repayment reduces long-term liabilities inthe statement of net assets. 1,837,741

Accrued interest is reported in the statement of activities, butdoes not require the useof financial
resources andtherefore arenot reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Liability® 9/30/12 $ (32,462)
Liability®9/30/11 -_ (32,462)

Property taxes reported in the statementof activitiesthatdo not providecurrent financial resources
arenot reported as revenuesin the funds.

Deferred @ October I $
Deferred@ September 30

Compensated absences reported in the statement of activities, do not require the use of current
financial resourcesand therefore are not reportedas expenditures in governmental funds.

Liability @ October 1
Liability @ September30

Landfill postclosure payable reported in the statement of activities, does not require the use of
current financial resources and therefore is not reported as an expenditure in governmental funds.

(168,428)
208,697

149,759
(167,445)

40,269

(17,686)

Liability @ October 1
Liability @ September 30

Immaterial correction from prioryear

Change In Net Assets of Governmental Activities

See accompanyingnotes to the basic financial statements

$ 1,184,216
(1,134,107) 50,109

55,798

$ (163,664)
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Assets

Current Assets:

Cashand cashequivalents
Receivables:

Intergovernmental
Interest

Notes

Interfund

Land and building held for resale

Total Current Assets

Non-current Assets:

Notes receivable

Total Assets

Liabilities

Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Interfund payable
Bonds payable
Notes payable

Total Current Liabilities

Long-term Liabilities:

Bonds payable

Total Liabilities

Net Assets

Unrestricted

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

Emanuel County, Georgia
Proprietary Funds

StatementofNet Assets
September 30,2012

Business-type Activities

Development
Authority of

Emanuel County Emanuel County Emanuel County
and the City Development Revolving

ofSwainsboro Authority Loan

s 822,797 S 206

4,222 .

- 4,651

- 131,550

57,886 516,705

1.236.170 90,711

2,121,075 743,823

37,800 305.000

2,158,875 1,048,823

14,060

2,071 4,650

516,705 211,161

- 80,000
- 51,551

532,836 347,362

305,000

532,836 652,362

173

173

490,990

491,163

Total

823,176

4,222

4,651

131,550

574,591
1326,881

2,865,071

833.790

3,698,861

14,060

6,721

727,866
80,000
51.551

880,198

305.000

1,185,198

$ 1,626,039 S 396,461 $ 491,163 S 2,513,663
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Emanuel County, Georgia
Proprietary Funds

Statement ofRevenues,
Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets

For the Year Ended September30,2012

Operating Revenues
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Personal services

Purchased services

Total Operating Expenses

Operating (Loss)

Non-operating Revenue (Expenses)
Operating grants
Capital grants
Investmentearnings
Interest expense
Loss on disposalof capital assets

Total Non-operating Revenue (Expenses)

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets Beginning ofYear

Net Assets End ofYear

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

Business-type Activities

Development
Authority of

Emanuel County Emanuel County Emanuel County
and the City Development Revolving

ofSwainsboro Authority Loan Total

$ - $

20,212

33,467 $ -
$ 33,467

20,212

20,212 33,467 53,679

73,602

611,249

52,292 - 125,894

611,249

684,851 52,292 737.143

(664,639) (18,825) . (683,464)

287,911

436,844

895

(15.990)

(33,467)
-

287,911

436,844

895

(33,467)
(15,990)

709,660 (33,467) 676,193

45,021

1,581,018

(5232)

448,753 491,163

(7,271)

2,520,934

$ 1,626,039 $ 396,461 $ 491,163 $ 2,513,663
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Emanuel County, Georgia
ProprietaryFunds

Statement of CashFlows
For the YearEndedSeptember30,2012

Increase (Decrease) in Cashand Cash Equivalents

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from customers

Cashpayments for personal services
Cash payments for goods andservices

Net CashProvided by (Used in) Operating Activities

CashFlows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Operating grants
Increase (decrease) in interfund loan payable
(Increase) decrease innotes receivable

NetCashFlows from Noncapital Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and
Related Financing Activities
Capital grants
Othercapital item
Interest

Principal on bonds payable
Principal on notespayable

Net Cash Providedby (Used in) Capitaland Related
Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Investment earnings

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash
and Cash Equivalents

CashandCash Equivalents Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents End ofYear

Reconciliation of Operating Income(Loss) to NetCash
Providedby (Used in) OperatingActivities

Operating (Loss)

Adjustments:
(Increase) Decrease in Assets:

Accounts receivable

Landand buildingheld forresale
Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses

Net Cash Provided by (Used In) Operating Activities

See accompanying noteslo the basicfinancial statements

Business-type Activities

Development
Authority of

Emanuel County Emanuel County Emanuel County
and the City Development Revolving

of Swainsboro Authority Loan

S 20,212 $
(73343)

(629.421)

(682,752)

287,911
100,000

387,911

35,758 $
(52,292)

(16^34)

(100,000)
551.318

451318

436,844 -

(15,990) -

- (33,467)
- (350,000)
-

(5U17)

420,854

895

126,908

695,889

822,797 S

(434,784)

206

206 S

S (664,639) S (18,825) $

(30,536)

12,364
59

2,291

S (682,752) S (16,534) _S_

22

173

173

Total

S 55,970

(125.835)
(629,421)

(699,286)

287,911

551318

839.229

436.844
(15,990)
(33.467)

(350,000)
(51317)

(13.930)

895

126,908

696,268

S 823,176

(683,464)

2,291

(30,536)

12364

59

(699.286)



Emanuel County, Georgia
Comparative Statement ofFiduciary Assets and Liabilities

Fiduciary Funds - Agency Funds
September 30,2012 and 2011

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Property taxes receivable
Due from others

Total Assets

Liabilities

Intergovernmental payable
Due to others

Total Liabilities

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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2012 2011

$ 745,289

1,000

746,289

$ 226,337
391,474

$ $ 617,811

s 57,048
689,241

$ 423,424

194387

s 746,289 $ 617,811



Emanuel County, Georgia
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For the YearEnded September30,2012
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Emanuel County, Georgia
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For the YearEnded September30,2012

The County is a political subdivision of the State of Georgia and is governed by a five member Board of County
Commissioners. All five members represent a geographical district within the County. There are additional officers elected
countywide. State law pertaining to county government provides for the independent election of these county officials. The
officials are all part ofthe County's legal entity. These elected officials are the Sheriff, Tax Commissioner, Magistrate Court
Judge, Probate Court Judge, and Superior Court Clerk. The offices of the independently elected officials are not separate
from the County and therefore are reported aspart of the primary government.

The state constitution and state law pertaining to county government provide for the independent election of the Superior
Court Judges and the District Attorney. The cost of operations of the Superior Court Judges and the District Attorney Offices
is shared with the State ofGeorgia and the counties ofCandler, Emanuel, Jefferson, Toombs and Washington. Only that
portion ofthe cost for which the County isresponsible isreported in this financial report.

Note 1 - Summary ofSignificant AccountingPolicies

The financial statements ofthe County have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States (GAAP) as applied to governments. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted
standard-setting body for governmental accounting and financial reporting. The County does not follow subsequent private-
sector guidance foritsenterprise funds.

The most significant ofthe County's accounting policies are described below.

1-A. ReportingEntity

The reporting entity is comprised of the primary government, component units and other organizations that are included to
ensure that the financial statements are not misleading. The primary government of the County consists of all funds,
departments, boards and agencies that are not legally separate from the County. For the County, this entity includes the
constitutionallyelected officers.

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the County is financially accountable. The County is
financially accountable for an organization ifthe County appoints avoting majority of the organization's governing board and
(1) the County is able to significantly influence the programs or services performed or provided by the organizations; or (2)
the County is legally entitied to or can otherwise access the organization's resources; the County is legally obligated or has
otherwise assumed the responsibility to finance the deficits of, or provide financial support to, the organization; or the County
is obligated for the debt of the organization. Component units also may include organizations that are fiscally dependent on
the County in that the County approves the budget, levies their taxes orissues their debt.

The County's component units are presented either as "blended" or"discretely presented." Ifblended, it is reported as ifit
were a fund of the County throughout the year. It is included at both the government-wide and fund financial reporting
levels.

Blended Component Units - Abrief description of the blended component units, all reported as enterprise funds, follows:

Development Authority of Emanuel County and the City of Swainsboro - Promotes business and industry in
Emanuel County by providing financing and incentive packages for Emanuel County. A majority of the Board of
Directors is appointed by theEmanuel County Commissioners.

Emanuel County Development Authority - Promotes business and industry in Emanuel County by providing
financing and incentive packages for Emanuel County. The Board ofDirectors isappointed by the Emanuel County
Commissioners.

Emanuel County Revolving Loan Fund - Promotes business and industry by providing direct loans tobusinesses in
Emanuel County.
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Note 1 - Summary ofSignificantAccounting Policies (Continued)

Separate financial statements for blended component units may be obtained from the Emanuel County Administrator, at
Emanuel County, Georgia.

Discretely Presented Component Unit - The discretely presented component unit is reported only at the government-wide
financial reporting level. The component unit columns included on the government-wide financial statements identify the
financial data of the County's discretely presented component unit. They are reported separately to emphasize that they are
legallyseparatefrom the County.

Abrief description of the discretely presented component unit follows:

Emanuel County Health Department (the Health Department) - The Health Department works to promote and preserve the
health of the citizens of the County. The Health Department's Board consists ofseven members, four of these members are
appointed by the County Commission and three members represent the County Chairman of the Commission, the Mayor of
the City ofSwainsboro and the Emanuel County School Superintendent. Although the County does not have the authority to
approve or modify the Health Department's budgets, it does have the ability to control the amount of funding it provides to
the Health Department and such funding is significant to the overall operations of the Health Department. The Health
Department is reported on aJune 30,2012 fiscal year. Separately issued financial statements may be obtained from:

Emanuel County Health Department
P. O. Box 436

Swainsboro, GA 30401

1-B. Basis ofPresentation

The County's basic financial statements consist ofgovernment-wide statements, including a statement ofnet assets and a
statement ofactivities and fund financial statements, which provide a more detailed level offinancial information.

Government-wide Financial Statements -The government-wide financial statements include the statement of net assets and
the statement of activities. These statements report financial information for the County as a whole. The primary
government and the component units are presented separately within these financial statements with the focus on the primary
government. Fiduciary funds are not presented in the government-wide financial statements.

The statement ofnet assets presents the financial position ofthe governmental activities of the County and it's discretely
presented component unit at year-end.

The statement ofactivities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each function of the
County's governmental activities and for each identifiable activity ofthe business-type activities of the County. Direct
expenses are those that are specifically associated with afunction and therefore clearly identifiable to that particular function.
The County does not allocate indirect expenses to functions inthe statement ofactivities.

The statement ofactivities reports the expenses ofa given function offset by program revenues directly connected with the
functional program. A function is an assembly ofsimilar activities and may include portions ofa fund or summarize more
than one fund tocapture the expenses and program revenues associated with a distinct functional activity. Program revenues
include: (1)charges for services which report fees and other charges to users of the County's services; (2)operating grants
and contributions which finance annual operating activities including restricted investment income; and(3) capital grants and
contributions which fund the acquisition, construction, or rehabilitation of capital assets. These revenues are subject to
externally imposed restrictions to these program uses. For identifying to which function program revenue pertains, the
deterniining factor for charges for services is which function generates the revenue. For grants and contributions, the
determining factor is to which function therevenues arerestricted.

Other revenue sources not properly included with program revenues are reported as general revenues of the County. The
comparison ofdirect expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to which each governmental function and each
identifiable business activity is self-financing or draws from thegeneral revenues of theCounty.
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Note 1 - Summary ofSignificant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Fund Financial Statements - During the year, the County segregates transactions related to certain County functions or
activities in separate funds in order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance. Fund financial
statements are designed to present financial information of the County at this more detailed level. Fund financial statements
are provided for governmental, proprietary and fiduciary funds.

Major individual governmental funds are reported in separate columns.

Fund Accounting - The County uses funds to maintain its financial records during the year. Afund is a fiscal and
accounting entity with aself-balancing set of accounts. The County uses three categories of funds: governmental, proprietary
and fiduciary.

Governmental Funds - Government funds are those through which most governmental functions typically are
financed Governmental fund reporting focuses on the sources, uses and balances ofcurrent financial resources.
Expendable assets are assigned to the various governmental funds according to the purposes for which they may or
must be used. Fund liabilities are assigned to the fund from which they will be liquidated. The County reports the
difference between governmental fund assets and liabilities as fund balance. The following are the County's major
governmental funds:

The General Fund - The general fund accounts for all financial resources except those required to be
accounted for in another fund. The general fund's fund balance is available to the County for any purpose
provided it is expended or transferred according to the general laws of the State of Georgia.

Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax Capital Projects Fund - This fund is utilized to account for the
proceeds of a1percent special purpose local option sales tax for funding various capital outlay projects
including but not limited to water system improvements, public safety and fire department facilities and
equipment improvements, recreational facilities improvements, and road improvements.

Proprietary Funds - The proprietary fund reporting focuses on the determination of operating income, changes in
net assets, financial position and cash flows. The three proprietary funds are all blended component units and
classified asenterprise funds. The major enterprise funds are defined above.

Fiduciary Funds - Fiduciary fund reporting focuses on assets and liabilities. The County's fiduciary funds are all
agency funds. The County has five agency funds, which account for the receipts and disbursements of funds by the
tax commissioner, sheriff, magistrate court judge, probate court judge, and clerk ofsuperior.

1-C. Measurement Focus

Government-wide Financial Statements - The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the economic
resources measurement focus. All assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of the County are included on the
statement of net assets. The statement of activities reports revenues and expenses.

Fund Financial Statements - All governmental funds are accounted for using a flow of current financial resources
measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the
balance sheet. The statement ofrevenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances reports the sources (i.e., revenues and
other financing sources) and uses (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) of current financial resources. This approach
differs from the manner in which the governmental activities ofthe government-wide financial statements are prepared.

Governmental fund financial statements therefore include a reconciliation with brief explanations to better identify the
relationship between the government-wide statements and the governmental fund statements.

Like the government-wide statements, the proprietary fund type is accounted for on a flow of economic resources
measurement focus on both financial reporting levels. All assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these
funds are included on the statements of netassets. The statements ofchanges infund netassets present increases (i.e.
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Note 1 - Summary ofSignificant Accounting Policies (Continued)

revenues) and decreases (i.e., expenses) in net total assets. The statement of cash flows provides information about how the
County finances and meets the cash flow needs ofitsproprietary activities.

1-D. Basis ofAccounting

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial records and reported on the financial
statements. Government-wide financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis ofaccounting. At the fund reporting
level, the governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting. The proprietary fund uses the accrual basis of
accounting at both reporting levels. Fiduciary funds are reported on the accrual basis at the fund reporting level. Differences
in the accrual and the modified accrual basis of accounting arise in the recognition of revenue, the recording of deferred
revenue, and in the presentation ofexpenses versus expenditures.

Revenues-Exchange Transactions -Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives
essentially equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On the modified accrual basis,
revenue isrecorded when the exchange takes place and in the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become
available. Available means that the resources will be collected within the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected
soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year. For the County, the phrase "available for
exchange transactions" means expected to be received within 60 days ofyear-end.

Revenues - Non-exchange Transactions - Non-exchange transactions in which the County receives value without directly
giving equal value in return, include sales taxes, property taxes, grants and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from
sales taxes is recognized in the period in which the taxable sale takes place. Revenue from property taxes is recognized in the
fiscal year for which the taxes are levied (Note 3-D). Revenue from grants and donations is recognized in the year in which
all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which specify the year
when the resources are required to be used or the year when use is first permitted, matching requirements, in which the
County must provide local resources to be used for aspecified purpose, and expenditure requirements, in which the resources
are provided to the County on areimbursement basis. On amodified accrual basis, revenue from non-exchange transactions
also must be available (i.e., collected within 60 days) before itcan be recognized.

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered to be susceptible to accrual: property taxes,
sales taxes, charges forservices and federal and state grants.

Deferred/Unearned Revenue -Deferred revenue arises when assets are recognized before revenue recognition criteria have
been satisfied.

On governmental fund financial statements (i.e., on the modified accrual basis), receivables that will not be collected within
the available period have been reported as deferred revenue (i.e., they are measurable but not available) rather than as
revenue.

Grants and entitlements received before the eligibility requirements are met (e.g., cash advances) also are recorded as
deferred revenue.

Deferred revenue is reclassified as "unearned revenue" on thegovernment-wide statement of net assets.

Expenses/Expenditures - On the accrual basLs ofaccounting, expenses are recognized at the time they are incurred. On the
modified accrual basis, expenditures generally are recognized in the accounting period in which the related fund liability is
incurred and due, if measurable.
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Note1 - Summary ofSignificantAccounting Policies (Continued)

1-E. Assets, Liabilities and Fund Equity

1-E-l Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents include amounts in demand deposits as well as short-term investments with a maturity date within
three months of the date acquired by the County. Time deposits are classified as cash and cash equivalent without regard to
maturity date.

Investments are stated at fair value based on quoted market prices.

Georgia law authorizesthe Countyto invest in the following typeof obligations:

Obligations of the State of Georgia or of any other states
Obligations of the United States Government
Obligations fully insured or guaranteed by the United States Government or Government agency
Obligations of any corporation of the United States Government
Prime bankers' acceptances
The State of Georgia local government investmentpool (i.e., Georgia Fund I)
Repurchase agreements
Obligations of the otherpoliticalsubdivisions of theStateof Georgia

l-E-2 Receivables

All trade and property tax receivablesare reported net of an allowancefor uncollectibles, where applicable.

l-E-3 Interfund Balances

On the fund financial statements, receivables and payables resulting from short-term interfund loans are classified as
"interfund receivables/payables." These amounts are eliminated in the governmental and business-type activities columns of
the statement of net assets, except for any net residual amounts due between governmental and business-type activities,
whichare reclassified and presentedas internalbalances.

l'E-4 Consumable Inventories

On the government-wide financial statements, inventories are presented at the lower of cost or market on a first-in, first-out
basisand are expensed when used (i.e., the consumptionmethod).

On the fund financial statements, inventories of governmental funds are stated at cost. Cost is determined on a first-in,
first-out basis. The cost of inventory items is recorded as an expenditure in the governmental fund types when purchased
(i.e., the purchases method). At year-end, fund balance is set-aside as nonexpendable in a like amount of inventory on hand.

l'E-5 RestrictedAssets

Certain amounts are classified as restricted in the general fund because their use has been restricted to the purpose of a
property tax.

l-E-6 Capital Assets

General capital assets are those assets not specifically related to activities reported in the proprietary funds. These assets
generally result from expenditures in governmental funds. The County reports these assets in the governmental activities
column of the government-wide statement of net assets but does not report these assets in the government fund financial
statements.
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Note 1 - Summary ofSignificantAccounting Policies (Continued)

All capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for additions and retirements during the
year. Donated capital assets are recorded at their fair market values as of the date received. The County maintains a
capitalization threshold of five thousand dollars. The County's infrastructure consists of roads and bridges. The County's
infrastructure has been reported retroactively in 2003. Improvements to capital assets are capitalized. The costs of normal
maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value ofthe asset or materially extend an asset's life are expensed.

All reported capital assets are depreciated except for land and construction in progress. Improvements are depreciated over
the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets. Useful lives for infrastructure were estimated based on the County s
historical records of necessary improvements and replacement.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities

Description Estimated Lives Estimated Lives

Buildings 25 - 50 years 25 - 50 years

Vehicles andequip ment 5 - 20years 5 - 20years

Furniture and fixtures 5-10 years 5-10 years

Infrastructure 20 - 40 years 20 - 40 years

At the inception of capital leases at the governmental fund reporting level, expenditures and an "other financing source" ofan
equal amount are reported atthe net present value offuture minimum lease payments.

l-E-7 Compensated Absences

Vacation benefits are accrued as a liability as the benefits are earned if the employees' rights to receive compensation are
attributable to services already rendered and it is probable that the employer will compensate the employees for the benefits
through paidtimeoff or someothermeans.

Sick leave benefits are accrued asa liability using the termination payment method. An accrual for earned sick leave is made
to the extent that it is probable that the benefits will result in termination payments. The liability is based on the County's
past experience of making termination payments.

All compensated absence liabilities include salary-related payments, where applicable.

The total compensated absence liability isreported on the government-wide financial statements. Governmental funds report
the compensated absence liability at thefund reporting level only uwhen due."

l-E-8 Accrued Liabilities and Long-term Obligations

All payables, accrued liabilities and long-term obligations are reported in the government-wide financial statements.

In general, governmental fund payables and accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely manner and in full
from current financial resources, are reported as obligations ofthe these funds. However, compensated absences that will be
paid from governmental funds are reported as aliability in the fund financial statements only to the extent that they are "due
for payment" during the current year. Notes are recognized as a liability in the governmental fund financial statements when
due.
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Note 1 - Summary ofSignificant Accounting Policies (Continued)

l-E-9 Fund Equity

Fund equity at the governmental fund financial reporting level is classified as "fund balance." Fund equity for all other
reporting isclassified as"netassets."

FundBalance - Fund balances maybe classified as follows:

• Nonspendable - Fund balances are reported as nonspendable when amounts cannot be spent because they
are either (a) not in spendable form (i.e., items that are not expected to be converted to cash) or (b) legally
or contractually required to be maintained intact.

• Restricted- Fund balances are reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either
through the enabling legislation adopted by the County Board of Commissioners or through external
restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors orlaws orregulations ofother governments.

• Committed - Fund balances are reported as committed when they can be used only for specific purposes
pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the County Board of Commissioners through amotion.
The fund balance must result from a specific revenue stream committed for a specific purpose. Only the
Board of County Commissioners may modify or rescind the commitment.

• Assigned - Fund balances are reported as assigned when amounts are constrained by the Board of County
Commissioners intent to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. By
motion, only the Board of County Commissioners can authorize an assignment offund balances. Also, any
of the fund balance reported at year-end that is included in the subsequent years' budget is reported as
assigned.

• Unassigned - Fund balances are reported as unassigned as the residual amount when the balances do not
meet any of the above criterion. The County reports positive unassigned fund balance only in the general
fund.

Flow Assumptions - When both restricted and unrestricted amounts of fund balance are available for use for expenditures
incurred, it is the County's policy to use restricted amounts first and then unrestricted amounts as they are needed. For
unrestricted amounts offund balance, it isthe County's policy touse fund balance in the following order:

• Committed

• Assigned
• Unassigned

Net Assets - Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in capital assets, net of
related debt, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any
borrowing used for the acquisition, construction or improvement ofthose assets. This net asset amount also isadjusted by
any bond issuance deferral amounts. Net assets are reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use
either through the enabling legislation adopted by the County or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors
orlaws or regulations ofother governments. All other net assets are reported asunrestricted.

I-E-10 OperatingRevenues and Expenses

Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the primary activity ofthe funds. Operating expenses
are necessary costs incurred to provide the good orservice that are the primary activity ofeach fund. Nonoperating revenues
are investment earnings and operating grants. Nonoperating expenses include the loss on the disposition ofcapital assets.
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Note 1 - Summary ofSignificant AccountingPolicies (Continued)

l'E'll Interfund Activity

Exchange transactions between funds are reported as revenues in the seller funds and as expenditures/expenses in the
purchaser funds. Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another without a requirement for repayment are reported as
interfund transfers. Interfund transfers are reported as other financing sources/uses in governmental funds and the after non-
operating revenues/expenses section in the proprietary fund. Repayments from funds responsible for particular
expenditures/expenses to the funds that initially paid for them are not presented on the financial statements (i.e., they are
netted).

Transfers between funds reported in thegovernmental activities column are eliminated.

l-E-12 Estimates

The preparation ofthe financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and
accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

l-E-13 Comparative Data

Comparative total data for the prior year have been presented only for individual funds in the fund financial statements in
order to provide an understanding of the changes in the financial position and operations of these funds. Also, certain
amounts presented in the prior year data have been reclassified to be consistent with the current year's presentation.

Note2 - Stewardship, Compliance andAccountability

2-A. Budgetary Information-The County adopts an annual operating budget for all governmental funds except the capital
projects funds, which have an adopted project budget. The County did not adopt a budget for the sheriffs social security
fund special revenue fund. The budget resolution reflects the total ofeach department's appropriation in each fund.

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with GAAP with the exception of the capital projects funds, which have project
length budgets, rather than annual budgets.

The legal level ofcontrol (the level at which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations) for each adopted annual
operating budget generally is the department level within each individual fund. Department heads have the authority to
transfer appropriations within adepartment (within the same fund) from one line item to another subject to the approval of
the CountyAdministrator.

Any change in total to a fund or departmental appropriation within a fund requires approval of the Board of County
Commissioners. TheBoard of County Commissioners also must approve budget transfers within departments.

The original 2012 budget was amended during the year. All unexpended annual appropriations lapse atyear-end.

2-B. Excess ofExpenditures overAppropriations

Thefollowing departments overspent the final amended 2012annual budget:

General fund:

Elections $ 9,548
Buildings and plant 5,804
Magistratecourt 1,571
Juvenile court 1,723
Uniform patrol 19,843
Rural fire department 55,351
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Note 2 - Stewardship, Compliance andAccountability

Economic development $ 6,309
Debt service 106,688

Eastcentral Georgia drug taskforce fund:
Public safety $ 12,261

Emergency911 fund:
Public safety $ 14,661

3 - Detailed Notes on All Funds

3-A. Deposits

Deposits - The County's cash and investment policy limits deposits to demand and money market accounts, and time
deposits at local banks. The County's deposits shall be secured by Federal Depositary Insurance Corporation (FDIC)
coverage and/or bank pledges. State statutes require banks holding public funds to secure these funds by FDIC insurance,
securities pledged at par value, and surety bonds at face value in combined aggregate totaling not less than 110 percent of the
publicfundsheld.

Custodial CredU Risk - Deposits - The custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of abank failure, the
County's deposits maynotbe recovered.

As of September 30, 2012, all of the County's deposits were covered either by FDIC coverage or collateralized with
securities heldby the County'sagentin theCounty's name.

Investments - Georgia Fund 1, created by OCGA 36-83-8, is astable net asset value investment pool which follows Standard
and Poor's criteria for AAAtfSl rated money market funds. However, Georgia Fund 1operates in a manner consistent with
Rule 2a-7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940 and is considered to be a2a-7 like pool. The pool is not registered with
the SEC as an investment company. The pool's primary objectives are safety of capital, investment income, liquidity and
diversification while maintaining principal ($1.00 per share value). Net asset value is calculated weekly to ensure stability.
The pool distributes earnings (net of management fees) on a monthly basis and determines participant's shares sold and
redeemed based on a$1.00 per share value. The fair value of the School System's position in the pool is the same as the
value of pool shares ($1 per share value). The regulatory oversight agency for Georgia Fund 1is the Georgia Office of the
State Treasurer.

Fundsincluded in this Pool are not required to be collateralized.

The fair value ofthe County's position in the pool approximates the value ofthe County's pool shares. Credit risk, value,
and interest risk at September 30,2012 areas follows:

Credit Risk Value Interest Risk

AAAf/Sl+rated $ 6,165,511 48dayWAM
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Primary government cashandcashequivalents reconciliation:

Cash and

Cash Equivalents

Primary Government - Fund ReportingLevel:
Governmental Funds - Balance Sheet $ 3,959,625
Governmental Funds - Balance Sheet- Restricted 53,458
Proprietary Fund Type Statement ofNet Assets 823,176
Statement ofFiduciary Assets and Liabilities 745,289

Total $ 5381348

3-B. Receivables

Receivables at September 30,2012, consisted oftaxes, accounts (billings for user charges) and intergovernmental receivables
arising from grants.

Receivables and payables are recorded on the County's financial statements to the extent that the amounts are determined to
be material and substantiated not only by supporting documentation, but also by a reasonable, systematic method of
determining their existence, completeness, valuation, and in the case of receivables, collectibility.

The allowances for uncollectibles are as follows:

• General fund - $83,006

3-C. Restricted Assets

Restricted assets reported in thegeneral fund arecomprised of the following:

Development Authority of Emanuel County and the City of Swainsboro - ($53,458) - these resources relate to
property taxes levied bytheCounty which relate to this development authority.

3-D. Property Taxes

The Board of Commissioners levy property taxes by or about September of each year. Property taxes attach as an
enforceable lien onproperty asofJanuary 1. The property taxes were levied onJuly 18,2012. Property taxes were billed on
September 20,2012 and aredue upon receipt, however, the actual due date was December 20,2012.

The County bills and collects itsown property taxes and also collects property taxes for the County Board of Education and
the State of Georgia. The County also collects vehicle and mobile home taxes for the cities located in the County and the
State of Georgia. Collection of the County's taxes and for the othergovernmental agencies is the responsibility of the Tax
Commissioner's Office, which is accounted for in an agency fund.
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3-E. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the primary government for the year ended September 30,2012, was as follows:

Governmental activities:

Nondepreciable capital assets:

Land

Depreciable capital assets:
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment

Infrastructure

Total depreciablecapital assets

Total capitalassets

Accumulated depreciation:

Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment

infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation

Governmental activities capital assets, net

Governmental activities depreciation expense

General government

Judicial

Public safety

Public works

Health and welfare

Culture and recreation

Housing and development

Total governmental activities depreciation expense

Business-type activities:

Depreciablecapital assets:

Machinery and equipment

Less accumulated depreciation:

Capital assets, net

Balance Balance

10/1/2011 Additions Deductions

S

9/30/2012

$ 878,274 $ $ 878,274

9,460,432 27,163 „ 9,487395

8,071,975 148,895 764,189 7,456,681

1,618,154 251,245

427,303

- 1,869,399

19,150,561 764,189 18,813,675

20,028,835 427303 764,189 19,691,949

2342,575 197,469 _ 2,740,044

3,964,754 517,321 370,579 4,111,496

189,106 46,736

761,526

- 235,842

6,696,435 370,579 7,087,382

$ 13332,400 $ (334,223) $ 393,610 $ 12,604367

$ 13,108

76,918

315,261

299,351

16,757

10,879

29,252

$ 761,526

Balance Balance

10/1/2011 Additions Deductions 9/30/2011

$ 34322 S $ $ 34,522

34322 - 34,522

$ $ $ $
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3-F. Interfund Balances and Transfers

Interfund Balances - Interfund balances at September 30, 2012, consisted of the following amounts and represent charges
for services or reimbursable expenses. These remaining balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1)
interfund goods or services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting
period, and (3) payments between funds are made.

The following table includes the interfund receivables and payables at September 30,2012:

Payable from: „

Receivable to:

General fund

Development authority
of emanuel county and

the city of swainsboro
Emanuel county

developmentauthority

General

fund

57,866

Development
authority of

emanuel county Emanuel county
and the ity development

of swainsboro authority Total

$

516.706

$ 211,161 $ 211,161

57,866

- 516,706

Total S 57,866 $ 516,706 S 211,161 $ 785,733

Interfund Transfers - Interfund transfers for the year ended September 30,2012, consisted of the following:

_Transfers from

Transfers to

Enhanced E-911 fund

General

fund

$ 131,856

The transfer from the general fund to theE-911 fund is to reduce theE-911 fund (nonmajor governmental fund) deficit as the
telephone surcharge is not adequate to balance this fund.

3-G. Long-TermDebt

Governmental Activities Bonds - The following is a summary of the outstanding long-term bonds at September 30,2012:

2006 General Obligation Refunding Bonds - On April 12, 2006, the County issued general obligation sales tax bonds for
$8,765,000 with an average interest rate of 3.4 percent to finance various projects that the citizens of County approved in a
special purpose localoption sales tax referendum. These bonds were retired in this fiscal year.

2006 General Obligation Refunding Bonds - On May 25, 2006, the County issued $1,920,000 in General Obligation Bonds
with an average interest rateof 4.488 percent to advancerefund $1,800,000 of outstanding 1998 Series bonds with an average
interestrateof5.638 percent. These bonds matureon August 1, 2028.
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Annual debt service requirements to these bonds payable asofSeptember 30,2012 follow:

Year Principal Interest Total

2013 $ 70,000 $ 68,570 !5 138,570

2014 70,000 65,595 135,595

2015 75,000 62,408 137,408

2016 80,000 59,220 139,220

2017 85,000 55,820 140,820

2018 -2022 465,000 219,925 684,925

2023 -2027 560,000 107,315 667,315

2028 125,000 5,750 130,750

Total $ 1330,000 $ 644,603 5 2,174,603

2011 General Obligation Sales Tax Bonds - On September 19, 2011, the County issued general obligation sales tax bonds
for $1360,000 with an average interest rate of1.72 %to finance various projects that the citizens ofCounty approved in a
special purpose local option sales tax referendum. These bonds mature on March 1,2018.

Annual debt service requirements to these bonds payable asofSeptember 30,2012 follow:

Year Principal ;j Interest j Total

; • -: • i\ *--j j
2013 ; $245,000 !; $24,725 1i $269,725 i
2014M 250,000J! 20,4681! 270,468
2015:; 255,000 jj 16,125 } \ 271,125
2016 260,000 jj 11,696 j I 271,696
2017 ; 270,000 j 7,138 jj__ 277438
2018 280,000 jj 2,408 \ \ 282,408

$ 1360,000 11 $ 82360 j j $ 1,642360

Governmental CapitalLeases- The following is a summary of theoutstanding long-term bonds at September 30,2012:

2007 Bancorpsouth Equipment Finance #2 - On September 5, 2007, the County entered into a capital lease for a motor
grader. The motor grader acquired by the lease is included ingovernmental activities general capital assets in the amount of
$83,032 (cost of $119365 less accumulated depreciation of $36,533). The lease carries an interest rate of 4.450%. This
lease matures on March 10, 2013. Annual debt service requirements to retire this note payable as of September 30, 2012
follow:

Year Principal Interest Total

2013 $ 26,083 $ 1,185 $ 27,268

2008Bancorpsouth Equipment Finance#2 - On October 8, 2008, the County entered intoa capital lease for a motorgrader.
The motor grader acquired by the lease is included in governmental activities general capital assets in the amount of
$141,168 (cost of $192300 less accumulated depreciation of $51,332). The lease carries an interest rate of 3.45%. This
lease matures on August 8,2013.
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Annual debt service requirements to retire this note payable as ofSeptember 30,2012 follow:

Year Principal Interest Total

2013 $ 22,793 $ 799 $ 23,592

2011 Bancorpsouth Equipment Finance #3 - On September 5,2007, the County entered into acapital lease for seven motor
graders. The motor graders acquired by the lease are included in governmental activities general capital assets in the amount
of $910,696 (cost of $1,011,888 less accumulated depreciation of $101,192). The lease carries an interest rate of 2.000%.
This lease matures on March 10, 2013 with a balloon payment. Annual debt service requirements to retire this note payable
as of September 30, 2012 follow:

Year Principal Interest Total

2013 $ 82,401 $ 24,266 $ 106,667

2014 84,064 22,623 106,687

2015 85,761 20,926 106,687

2016 951,005 19,195 970,200

$ 1,203,231 $ 87,010 $ 1,290,241

2011 Durden Banking Company - On June 30, 2011, the County issued a note payable to Durden Banking Company in the
amount of$199,626, the proceeds used for the purchase ofa Mack Truck. This note matures onOctober 1,2012. Annual
debtservice requirements to thisnote payable as of September 30,2012 follow:

Year Principal Interest Total

2013 $ 149,626 $ 5,461 $ 155,087

Business-type Activities -The County hasone outstanding bond payable and oneoutstanding notepayable for theEmanuel
County Development Authority fund.

2001 Industrial Development Bonds - In 2001, the Emanuel County Development Authority (a blended component unit)
issued industrial development bonds for$3,550,000 with interest rates of 5.100 - 6.500% percent for the City of Swainsboro
golfcourse project ($1,250,000) andforJaboMetal Fabrication ($2,300,000). Thesebonds mature on 2016.

Annual debt service requirementsto these bondspayableas of September30,2012 follow:

Year Principal j| Interest j * Total

\ 2013

; 2014

if M
._..;.„!, ...... .,,,. ;.i... .!...),.

;"$ 85,000 ||.$ 24,665 | j $
95,000 || 19310 | j

109,665 I
114310 I

j. 2015
2016

j\ 100,000 [[_ 13,325 ! |
M 105,000 IS 6,825 | 1

113,325 [
111,825 |

j —
["' $ 385,000 !! $ 64,125 j \"$

i

449,125 !
j
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Spivey National Bank Note Payable - On September 8, 2008, the Emanuel County Development Authority (a blended
component unit) issued anote for $247,125 at an interest rate 3.750%, the note was issued for equipment purchased from
Advanced Metal Components, Inc. Thisnote matures in2013.

Annual debt service requirements to retire this note payable as ofSeptember 30,2012 follow:

Year Principal Interest Total

2013 $ 51,551 $ 1,061 $ 52,612

Changes in Long-term Debt -Changes in the County's long-term obligations consisted of the following for the year ended
September30,2012:

Outstanding ;__[_
10/1/2011 I | Additions!Governmental Activities:

! I

}General Obligation Sales Tax Bonds: J ]
"1 Series 2005 ~ " T| $ 1390,000

Series 2006

! Series2011 _ ,._.
: ICapital Leases \\ _ _ _ j

j .Bancorpsouth Equipment Finance#l I 51,033 i
; \ Bancorpsouth Equipment Finance#2 jj .44^813 [

I Bancorpsouth Equipment Finance#3 j j 1,284,002 [
j_Durden Banking Company _j 1??>626 j
|Compensated Absences [ 149,759 ;
ILandfill Closure and Postclosure Care j 1,184,216 '

1,600,000

1360,000

__^.
i

130,005

I Outstanding i Amounts Due
T'tReductions i ! 9/30/2012 i ! in OneYear

...-.L.

$ 1,590,000

70~000

24,950

22,020

J30,77JL
50,000

112,319

50,109

-4~-

1330,000 j j
1360,000 | ;

70,000

245,000

26,083 ] 26,083
22,793]! 22,793

1^203,231
149,626

167^445
1,134,107

82,401

149,626

"125384

Total Governmental Activities
I i

Business-type Activities:

$ 7,663,449 j I $ 130,005 I I $ 2,000,169 j I $ 5,793,285 ; ! $ 721,487

H4-
jIndustrial Development Bonds _j $ 735,000
•Note Payable 11 102,868

Total Business-type Activities

jDiscretely Presented Component Unit:
j [Emanuel County Health Department
\ jCompensated Absences

$ 837,868"] i $

$ 56,644 j j $

$ 350,000 11 $ 385,000 j1 $„_ 85^)00
51,3171 ! 5L351 !'! "51351

$ 401317 1| $ 436351 \7$ 136351

4,448 i | $ 52,196 ! j $

The general fund retires capital leases #2 and #3. The SPLOST fund retires the bonds, capital lease #i and the note payable
to the Durden Banking Company. The business-type industrial development bonds and the note payable are retired by the
Emanuel County Development Authority. The governmental activities compensated absences liability will be paid from the
fund from which the employees' salaries are paid, primarily the general fund. The landfill closure and postclosure care is
funded by the general fund.
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3-H. Landfill Closure andPostclosure Care

State and federal laws and regulations required the County to place afinal cover on the Emanuel County Landfill site when it
stopped accepting waste in 1998 and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for thirty years after
closure The landfill's final cover was completed in 2000 and the final closure certificate was issued January 12, 2001. The
estimated post closure cost of $46,000 per year plus inflation for the 30 years is based on engineers' estimates at November
1 1995 This represents all of the post closure cost liability (none remaining to be recognized) but it must be updated
annually to adjust for inflation or deflation, and changes in technology, or applicable laws or regulations. The County has
estimated a $1,134,107 liability forclosure andpostclosure.

3-1. Pension

The County adopted a non-contributory defined contribution pension plan on August 31, 1998 and it went into effect on
February 3 1999. All full-time employees with two years of service are eligible for coverage. Coverage begins on the next
entry date immediately following the anniversary hire date. The plan, Emanuel County Board of Commissioners Retirement
Saving Plan, is administered by GEB Corp. The County has the authority to establish or amend plan provisions. The
investment objective of the plan is to protect against loss of principal while providing returns in excess of money market
funds and one-year Treasury bills. The County is responsible for establishing or amending the pension plan contribution
requirements. The County's pension contribution for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012 was $204,360 on covered
payroll of $2,554,676.

Employees, at their option, may contribute as much as 25% of their salary to a457 deferred compensation plan. Employees
do not contribute to the 401(a) plan. The County makes contributions to a401(a) plan based on the employee's contribution
to the457plan as follows:

Employee County
Contribution Contribution

0% 55%
2% 6.0%

4% or more 6.5%

The following plans are in effect for the constitutional officers ofEmanuel County. The County does not contribute directly
to the plans. Contributions are made through an increase in the fine amounts. The County exercises no control of these
plans.

Probate Judge's Retirement Fund of Georgia - The Probate Judge is covered under a pension plan, which requires that
certain sums from marriage licenses and fines or bond forfeitures be remitted to the pension plan before the payment of any
costs or other claims.

Clerk of Superior Court Retirement Fund- The Clerk of Superior Court is covered under a pension plan, which requires
that certain sums from fees and fines or bond forfeitures be remitted to the pension plan before the payment of any costs or
other claims.

Sheriff's RetirementFund/Peace Officers'Annuityand BenefitFund- The Sheriff and sheriff deputies are coveredunder
separate pension plans which require that certain sums from fines or bond forfeitures be remitted by the Probate Judge or
Clerkof SuperiorCourt to the pension plan beforethepayment of any costsor otherclaims.
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3'J. Fund Equity

FundBalances - Fund balances are classified as follows:

• Nonspendable - The following fund balances are nonspendable because they are not in spendable form:

General Fund:

Prepaid items $ 129,988

• Restricted - The following fund balances are legallyrestricted to specified purposes:

Major SPLOST Fund
Capital projects $ 3,120,650

Major East Central GeorgiaDrug
Task Force Fund

Public safety $ 176,805

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds:
Capital outlay $ 365

• Unassigned-The following fund balances include the general fund unassigned amount:

General Fund:

Prepaiditems $ 7,933,154

Invested in Capital Assets, Net ofRelated Debt

The"investedin capitalassets, net of relateddebt" reportedon the government-wide statementof net assets as of September
30,2012 are as follows:

Governmental Business-type
Investments in capital assets, net of related debt: Activities Activities

Cost of capital assets
Less accumulated depreciation
Book value

Less capital related debt

invested in capital assets, net of related debt

$ 19,691,949

7,087,382

12,604,567

4,491,733

$ 34,522

34,522

$ 8,112,834 $ -
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4-A. Risk Management

Interlocal RiskManagementAgency - The County is exposed to various risksof losses related to torts, theftsof, damage to,
anddestruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The County hasjoined together
with other counties in the state as part of the Interlocal Risk Management Agency (IRMA) for property and liability
insurance and the ACCG-Group Self-Insurance Workers' Compensation Fund (WCSIF), public entity risk pools currently
operating as common risk management and insurance programs for member local governments. The Association County
Commissioners of Georgia (ACCG) administers both risk pools.

As part of these risks pools, the County is obligated to payall contributions and assessments as prescribed by thepools, to
cooperate with the pools' agents and attorneys, to follow loss reduction procedures established by the funds, and to reportas
promptly as possible, and in accordance with any coverage descriptions issued, all incidents which could result in the funds
being required topayany claim of loss. The County is also toallow the pools' agents and attorneys to represent the County in
investigation, settlement discussions and all levels of litigation arising outof any claim made against theCounty within the
scopeof loss protectionfurnished by the funds.

The funds are to defend and protect the members of the funds against liability or loss as prescribed in the member
governments' contracts and in accordance with the workers' compensation laws of Georgia. The funds are to payall cost
taxed against members inany legal proceeding defended bythe members, all interest accruing after entry ofjudgment, and all
expenses incurred for investigation, negotiation or defense.

Settled claims in the past three years havenot exceeded thecoverage.

4-B. Contingent Liabilities

The County has received federal and state grants for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit by the grantor
agencies or their designee. These audits could result in a request for reimbursement to the grantor agency for costs
disallowed under terms of the grant. Based on prior experience, the County believes such disallowances, if any, will be
immaterial.

The Countywas a defendant in several lawsuitsat September 30, 2012. In the opinion of Countymanagement, the outcome
of thesecontingencies will not have a materialeffecton the financial positionof the County.

4-C. Commitments

The County has entered into a contract with Emanuel County Hospital (Hospital Authority) wherein the County is obligated
to make payments to the Hospital Authority sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on $4,715,000 Emanuel County
Hospital Authority (Georgia), Refunding and Improvement Revenue Anticipation Certificates, Series 1997 and $10,000,000
Emanuel County Hospital Authority (Georgia) Revenue Anticipation Certificates, Series 2002 as the same become due and
payable, to the extent funds of the Hospital Authority pledged to such payment are insufficient for such purposes. The
County is obligated under the contract to levy an annual ad valorem tax on all taxable property located within the territorial
limits of the County, at such rate within the seven mil limit or such greater millage limit hereafter authorized to produce in
each year revenues which are sufficient to fulfill the County's obligations under the contract. The certificates do not
constitute a debt of the County. The Series 1997 certificates mature from 1998 thru 2013 with varying interest rates from
3.90% to 5.10%. The Series 2002 certificates mature from 2003 thru 2021 with varying interest rates from 2.00% to 4.60%.

4-D. Joint Ventures

Under Georgia law, the County, in conjunction with other cities or counties in the middle Georgia area, is a member of Heart
of Georgia Altamaha Regional Development Center (RDQ and is required to pay annual dues thereto. Membership in an
RDC is required by the Official Code of Georgia Annotated (OCGA) Section 50-8-34 which provides for the organizational
structure of the RDC in Georgia. The RDC Board membership includes the chief elected official of each county and
municipality of the area. OCGA50-8-39.1 provides that the member governments are liable for any debts or obligations of
an RDC.
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Separate financial statements may beobtained from:

Heart ofGeorgia Altamaha Regional Development Center
501 OakStreet
Eastman, Georgia31023
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Revenues

Taxes

Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures

Investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current:

General government
Judicial

Public safety
Public works

Health and welfare

Culture and recreation

Housing and development
Debt Service:

Principal
Interest and fiscal charges

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets
Transfers out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances Beginning of Year

Fund Balances End ofYear

Emanuel County, Georgia
General Fund

Schedule ofRevenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended September 30,2012

Variance

Original Final With Final

Budget Budget Actual Budget

$ 7,248,299 $ 7,248,299 $ 7,266,033 $ 17,734
20,542 20,542 21,250 708

11,375 11,375 65,720 54,345

1,103,533 1,103,533 1,155,206 51,673

553,542 553,542 491,726 (61,816)
35,016 - 20,555 20,555

168,140 168,140 277,048 108,908

9.140,447 9,105,431 9,297,538 192,107

2,468,410 2,468,410 2,380,828 87,582

995,767 995,767 986,985 8,782

2,279,603 2,279,603 2,248,564 31,039

2,374,209 2,374,209 2,231,023 143,186

199,148 199,148 198,104 1,044

496,496 496,496 462,939 33,557

325,296 325,296 259,051 66,245

23,591 23,591

9,162,520 9,162,520

(22,073) (57,089)

102,791

27,488

8,897,773

399,765

13,770

(131,956)

(79,200)

(27,488)

264,747

456,854

13,770
(131,956)

(118,186) (118,186)

$ (22,073) $ (57,089) 281,579 $ 338,668

7,844,920

$ 8,126,499
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Emanuel County, Georgia
East CentralGeorgiaDrug TaskForceFund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in FundBalances • BudgetandActual

For the Year Ended September 30,2012
(With Comparative ActualAmounts for The Year Ended September 30,2011)

Revenues

Intergovernmental
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current:

Public safety

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Fund Balances Beginning ofYear

Fund Balances End of Year

2012

Original Final
Budget Budget Actual

Variance

With Final

Budget

2011

Actual

$ 284,609 $ 284,609 $ 213,457 $ (71,152) $ 377,680
74 74

78,382 78382 89

284,609 284,609 291,913 7,304 377,769

284,609 284,609 296,870 (12,261) 289,213

$ s -
(4,957) S

181,762

(4,957) 88,556

93,206

$ 176,805 $ 181,762
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Note! -BudgetaryBasisofAccounting

The General Fund and the East Central Georgia Task Force Fund adopt their operating budget on the
modified accrual basis of accounting (GAAP basis budget).
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Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash

Investments

Receivables:

Accounts

Property taxes
Sales taxes

Intergovernmental
Interfund

Inventory

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued expenditures
Interfund payable
Deferred revenue

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances

Nonspendable - not In spendable form
Unassigned

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

Emanuel County, Georgia
General Fund

Comparative Balance Sheet
September30,2012 and 2011

47

2012 2011

$ 2,123,059 $ 2,350,542

53,458 37,069

5,152,430 4,505,230

53,878 46,217

232,943 187,928

238.424 223,507

526,602 492,929

211,161 275,857

129,988 124,956

$ 8,721,943 $ 8,244.235

S 274.008

54,853

57,886

208,697

S 146,715

84,172

168,428

595,444 399,315

129,988

7,996,511

124,956

7,719,964

8,126,499 7,844,920

$ 8,721,943 $ 8,244.235



Emanuel County, Georgia
General Fund

Comparative Statement ofRevenues, Expenditures and
Changesin FundBalances

For the YearsEnded September30,2012 and 2011

Revenues

Taxes

Intergovernmental
Licenses and permits
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures

Investmentearnings
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current:

General government

Judicial

Public safety
Public works

Health and welfare

Culture and recreation
Housing and development

Capital Outlay
Debt Service:

Principal
Interest and fiscal charges

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) ofRevenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers out

Inception of capital leases
Issuance of loans

Proceeds from the sale of capital assets

Other Financing Sources

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances Beginning of Year

Fund Balances End of Year
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2012 2011

$ 7,266,033 J
65,720
21.250

1,155,206
491,726

20,555
277,048

& 7,267,703
310321

20.025
1,233,829

532,770
52,638

174468

9,297,538 9491.854

2,380,828
986,985

2,248^64
2,231,023

198,104
462,939
259.051

2,405,814
1,154.199
2,091,191
1,710,125
1,205453

457,658
849,195

2,211.663

102,791.
27,488

127,963
2316

8,897,773 12,215,677

399,765 (2,623.823)

(131,956)

13.770

(102,751)
1,390,690

199,626
866,000

(118,186) 2453465

281,579 (270,258)

7,844,920 8,115,178

$ 8,126,499 i5 7,844,920

8,126.499



Emanuel County, Georgia
General Fund

Schedule ofRevenues and Other Financing Sources -Budget and Actual
For the YearEndedSeptember30,2012

(With Comparative ActualAmountsfor The Year Ended September 30,2011)

Revenues

Taxes

Real property
Current

Timber

Railroad

Real estate transfer tax

Franchise taxes

Local optionsalesand use tax
Alcoholic beverage excise tax

Insurance premium tax
Financial institution tax

Interestand penalties

Total Taxes

Licenses and Permits

Business licenses - alcoholic beverages
Non-business licenses and permits

Total Licenses and Permits

Intergovernmental
Federal

State

Total Intergovernmental

Totals carried forward

Original
Budget

Final

Budget

2012

Actual

2011

Variance

With Final

Budget Actual

5,045.473
117,258

15,252

5,000
23,862

1,283459
57455

541,285
33,867

125,188

$ 5,045,473 $ 4,964411 $ (80,962) $
(24,717)

(2,126)
2,873
7,909

96,280
(2476)

(14,683)
3,259

32,277

5,052,384
110,463

14,218
7,903

28,009
1418,563

54476

492,927

33,867
154,793

7,248,299

15,100
5,442

20,542

9475

2,000

11,375

7,280,216
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117,258
15,252

5,000
23,862

1,283459
57,555

541,285
33,867

125,188

7,248,299

15,100
5.442

20,542

9,375

2,000

11,375

7.280,216

92.541

13,126

7,873
31,771

1479,839
55,179

526,602

37,126
157,465

7,266.033

15,200
6,050

21,250

2,170

63,550

65.720

7.353,003

17,734 7,267,703

100

608

14,600

5,425

708 20,025

(7,205)
61450

307,105

3.216

54445 310,321

72,787 7,598,049

(continued)



Emanuel County, Georgia
General Fund

Schedule ofRevenues andOtherFinancing Sources - BudgetandActual
For the YearEndedSeptember30,2012

(With ComparativeActualAmountsfor The Year Ended September 30,2011)
(continued)

Broughtforward

Revenues

Charges for Services
General government
Court costs, fees and charges
Election qualifying fees
Printing and duplicating services
Motor vehicle tag collection fees
Other:

Commissions on tax collections

Other charges
Public safety
Utilities/enterprise-sanitation
Other fees

Total Charges for Services

Fines and Forfeitures

Court

Investment Earnings

Miscellaneous

Rents and royalties
Other

Total Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Other Financing Sources:
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets
Transfers in

Other Financing Sources:

Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources

Original
Budget

Final

Budget

2012

Actual

Variance

With Final

Budget

2011

Actual

$ 7,280,216 $ 7,280,216 $ 7,353,003 S 72.787 $ 7,598,049

148,523

37,000
1,445

148,523

37,000
1,445

124,904

8.252

37,642

(23,619)
(28,748)
(1,445)
37,642

101,125

957

37,059

150,000 150,000 164,805 14,805 164,880

378

531,355

235,210

531,355

235,210

492,366

326,858
379

(38,989)
91,648

379

628,515

291,567

51,673 1,224,481

(61,816) 532,770

(14,461) 52,639

35,089
73,819

118358
56,210

108,908 174368

157,091 9382307

1,103,533

553342

35,016

118,818
49322

168,140

9,140,447

22,073

22,073

1,103333

553342

35,016

118,818
49322

168.140

9.140.447

22,073

22,073

1,155,206

491,726

20355

153,907
123,141

277,048

9,297338

13,770

13,770

(8303) 866,000

199,626

(8303) 1,065,626

$ 9,162,520 $ 9,162320 $ 9311,308 $ 148,788 $ 10,648,133
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Emanuel County, Georgia
General Fund

Schedule ofExpenditures and Other Financing Uses •Budget andActual
For the YearEndedSeptember30,2012

(With Comparative ActualAmountsfor The Year Ended September 30,2011)

2012 2011

Variance

Original
Budget

Final

Budget Actual

With Final

Budget Actual

Expenditures
General Government

Elections

Personal services

Purchased/contracted services

Supplies

S 53322 J
27,134

6,950

5 53322 $
27,134

6,950

52,869

38,065
6,020

$ 453 $
(10,931)

930

57,893

30,783
5,096

Total Elections 87,406 87,406 96,954 (9,548) 93,772

Financial Administration

Personal services

Purchased/contracted services

Supplies
Contingency

233,470
107,853

8,036
50,000

233,470
107,853

8,036
50,000

229,718
106,127

7,456

5,000

3,752
1,726

580

45,000

228,542

103,190

6,277

5,379

Total Financial Administration 399,359 399,359 348,301 51,058 343,388

Human Resources

Personal services

Purchased/contracted services

Supplies

833,350
298,715

833,350
298,715

793,396
311,827

27

39,954
(13,112)

(27)

827,983
298,944

Total Human Resources 1,132,065 1,132,065 1,105,250 26,815 1,126,927

Tax Commissioner

Personal services
Purchased/contracted services

Supplies

184,982
35,869
23,800

184,982
35,869
23,800

244,651

176,472
40,315

6,431

223,218

8310
(4,446)
17,369

21,433

174,610
40,495

5,480

Total Tax Commissioner 244,651 220385

Tax Assessor

Personal services

Purchased/contracted services

Supplies

235365

43,995

12,965

235365
43,995

12,965

235,685
43,861

9,351

(120)
134

3,614

240,432

46,838

12,745

Total Tax Assessor 292325 292,525 288,897 3,628 300,015

Totals carried forward 2,156,006 2,156,006 2,062,620 93,386 2,084,687

(continued)
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Emanuel County, Georgia
General Fund

Schedule ofExpenditures and Other Financing Uses -Budget and Actual
Forthe Year Ended September 30,2012

(With Comparative ActualAmountsfor The Year Ended September 30,2011)

Original
Budget

Final

Budget

2012

Actual

Variance

With Final

Budget

(continued)

2011

Actual

Totals brought forward

Expenditures
Buildings and Plant
Personal services
Purchased/contracted services

Supplies

Total Buildings and Plant

Total General Government

Judicial

Superior Court
Personal services

Purchased/contracted services
Supplies
Other

Total Superior Court

$ 2,156,006 $ 2,156,006 $ 2,062,620 $ 93,386 $ 2,084,687

63,972
84,436

163,996

312,404

2,468,410

236,044

144,019
12,418

233,397

625,878

63,972

84,436
163,996

312,404

2,468,410

236,044

144,019
12,418

233,397

625,878

72,185
73,328

172,695

318,208

2,380,828

233,705
139,964
15,794

233,690

623,153

(8,213)
11,108

(8,699)

(5,804)

65,196
69,347

183,584

318,127

87^82 2,402,814

2,339
4,055

(3376)
(293)

2,725

234,147
123,196
10,110

440,010

795,463

State Court

Personal services
Purchased/contracted services

Supplies

Total State Court

65,911
13397

200

65,911
13397

200

65,683
11,278

228

2,119
200

65,683
11,271

79308 79,508 76,961 2,547 76,954

Magistrate Court
Personal services

Purchased/contracted services

Supplies

134,396

11,843
5,298

134396

11,843

5,298

134,941

13,144

5,023

(545)
(1301)

275

134,321

10395
2,762

Total Magistrate Court 151337 151337 153,108 (1371) 147,678

Totals carried forward 3,325,333 3,325,333 3,234,050 91,283 3,422,909

(continued)
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Emanuel County, Georgia
General Fund

Schedule ofExpenditures and Other Financing Uses - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 30,2012

(With Comparative ActualAmountsfor The YearEndedSeptember 30,2011)
(continued)

2012 2011

Variance

Original
Budget

Final

Budget Actual

With Final

Budget Actual

Totals brought forward $ 3325333 !S 3325,333 S 3,234,050 $ 91,283 $ 3,422,909

Expenditures
Judicial (Continued)

Probate Court

Personal services

Purchased/contracted services

Supplies

118,511

13,914

3,419

118311
13,914
3,419

112,820
13,431

2,789

5,691

483

630

106,751
10,124
14,214

Total Probate Court 135,844 135,844 129,040 6,804 131,089

Juvenile Court

Purchased/contracted services 3,000 3,000 4,723 (1,723) 3,015

Total Judicial 995,767 995,767 986,985 8,782 1,154,199

Public Safety
Uniform Patrol

Personal services

Purchased/contracted services

Supplies

627,702
81,705

116,117

627,702

81,705
116,117

616,806
96383

131,978

10,896
(14,878)
(15,861)

605,781

87,071
142335

Total Uniform Patrol 825324 825,524 845,367 (19,843) 835,187

Special Detail
Personal services 16,160 16,160 9,081 7,079 16,925

Court Services

Purchased/contracted services 43375 43375 28,270 15,105 37,754

Jail Operations
Personal services

Purchased/contracted services

Supplies

612,874

91,106
295306

612,874

91,106
295306

595357

85,480
275,932

17317
5,626

19374

578,499
79,252

335,244

Total Jail Operations 999,486 999,486 956,769 42,717 992,995

Totals carried forward 5348,722 5,348,722 5307300 141,422 5,439,874

(continued)
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Totals brought forward

Emanuel County, Georgia
General Fund

Schedule ofExpenditures and Other Financing Uses -Budget andActual
For the YearEndedSeptember30,2012

(With ComparativeActualAmountsforThe Year Ended September 30,2011)

Original
Budget

Final

Budget

2012

Actual

Variance

With Final

Budget

(continued)

2011

Actual

5348,722 5348,722 5,207300 S 141,422 $ 5,439,874

Public Safety

Rural Fire Department
Purchased/contracted services

Supplies
62,176

9,126

62,176
9,126

68313
58,140

(6337)
(49,014)

72,982
6,119

Total Rural Fire Department 71302 71302 126,653 (55351) 79,101

Animal Control

Other 53,067 53,067 48,401 4,666 53,755

Emergency Management
Persona! services

Purchased/contracted services

Supplies

4,650

5,682
11,741

4,650

5,682
11,741

4,650

2,739

4,703

2,943

7,038

4,650

3,130
1,898

Total Emergency Management 22,073 22,073 12,092 9,981 9,678

Emergency MedicalServices
Purchased/contracted services

Supplies
Other

31,600

55,041
134,962

221,603

31,600
55,041

134,962

221,603

35,890

52,444
107,891

196,225

(4,290)
2397

27,071

25378

27,483

52387

92,899

Total Emergency Medical Services 172,969

Cornor/Medical Examiner

Personal services

Purchased/contracted services
Supplies

Other

19,696
6,117
1,200

19,696

6,117
1,200

16,934
7,816

156

800

25,706

2,762
(1,699)
1,044

(800)

1307

19,868

6393
88

Total Cornor/Medical Examiner 27,013 27,013 53,755

Total Public Safety 2,279,603 2,279,603 2348364 31,039 2,252,119

Totals carried forward 5,743,780 5,743,780 5,616377 127,403 5,809,132

(continued)
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Emanuel County, Georgia
General Fund

Schedule ofExpenditures and Other Financing Uses -Budget andActual
Forthe YearEndedSeptember30,2012

(With Comparative ActualAmountsfor The Year Ended September 30,2011)
(continued)

Totals brought forward

Expenditures
Public Works

Solid Waste

Personal services

Purchased/contracted services

Supplies
Capital outlay

Total Solid Waste

Maintenance and Shop
Personal services

Purchased/contracted services

Supplies

Total Maintenance and Shop

Total Public Works

Health and Welfare

Health- public health administration
Healthcenters ande general clinic
Intergovernmental welfare payments

Total Health and Welfare

Culture and Recreation

Other

Branch Libraries

Other

Housing and Development
Agricultural Resources

Personal services

Purchased/contracted services

Supplies

Total Agricultural Resources

Totals carried forward

Original
Budget

Final

Budget

2012

Actual

Variance

With Final

Budget

2011

Actual

$ 5,743,780 $ 5,743,780 $ 5,616377 $ 127,403 $ 5,809,132

178,625
623,269

122,931

178,625
623,269
122,931

160342

528301
104,092

18,083
94,768
18,839

131,690

160314
535,795

114,281
199,626

924,825 924,825 793,135 1,010,214

860,190

98,720
490,474

860,190
98,720

490,474

825325
91,174

521389

34,865
7,546

(30,915)

816,443

91,021
469,814

1,449384 1,449,384 1,437,888 11,496 1377,278

2374,209 2374,209 2,231,023 143,186 2,387,492

136,928 136,928 136,928 -
136,928

1,009398

62,220 62,220 61,176 1,044 59,027

199,148 199,148 198,104 1,044 1,205353

363378 363378 330,021 33357 457,658

132,918 132,918 132,918 -
132,918

49,908
37,014

6,750

49,908
37,014

6.750

32,974

40,663
6,050

16,934

(3,649)
700

22,180
36,974

5,244

93,672 93,672 79,687 13,985 64398

8,907305 8,907,305 8,588,130 319,175 10,057,151

(continued)
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Totals brought forward

Expenditures
Housing and Development

Emanuel County, Georgia
General Fund

Schedule of Expenditures andOther Financing Uses -Budget andActual
For the YearEndedSeptember30,2012

(With Comparative ActualAmountsfor The Year Ended September30,2011)

Original

Budget

Final

Budget

2012

Actual

Variance

With Final

Budget

(continued)

2011

Actual

$ 8,907305 $ 8,907305 $ 8388,130 S 319,175 $ 10,057,151

Forest Resources

Purchased/contracted services

Supplies
Other

1,000
30,653

31,653

1,000
30,653

31,653

18

222

30,653

30,893

(18)
778 270

30,653

Total Forest Resources 760 30,923

Economic Development
Other 101339 101339 107,629 (6,390) 602,892

Airport
Other 53,814

31,101
7,600
6,217

53,814 53,814

25

2,640

1,411

110,659

Code Enforcement

Personal services
Purchased/contracted services

Supplies

31,101
7,600

6317

31,076
4,960

4,806

31,048
4,465

4,809

Total Code Enforcement 44,918 44,918 40,842 4,076 40322

Total Housing and Development 325,296 325,296 259,051 66,245 849,194

Debt Service

Principal
Interest and fiscal charges

23391 23391 102,791

27,488

130.279

(79,200)
(27,488)

(106,688)

149349

2316

Total Debt Service 23391 23391 151365

Total Expenditures 9,162320 9,162,520 8,897,773 264,747 11.057,910

Other Financing Uses
Transfers out 131,956

9,029,729

(131,956)

$ 132,791
Total Expenditures and Other

Financing Uses S 9,162320 $ 9,162320 $ $ 11,057,910
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Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables:

Accounts

Intergovernmental

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities

Escrow deposits
Interfund payable

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances

Restrictedfor public safety

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

Emanuel County, Georgia
EastCentralGeorgia Drug TaskForce

Comparative BalanceSheet
September30,2012 and 2011

57

2012 2011

$ 208,662 $ 98,364

34,234

62,364 109,079

$ 305,260 S 207,443

128,455

128,455

176,805

6,765

18,916

25,681

181,762

$ 305,260 $ 207,443



Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables:

Accounts

Intergovernmental

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued expenditures
Escrow deposits
Interfund payable

Total Liabilities

Emanuel County, Georgia
Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmafor Special Revenue Funds
For the Year Ended September 30,2012

(With Comparative Totals At September 30,2011)

2012 2011

Total Total

Nonmajor Nonmajor
2003 Chip Enhanced Special Revenue Special Revenue

Grant 911 Funds Funds

365 $ $

96,570

365 $

96370

98,729

63,012
109,079

365 $ 96,570 $ 96,935 $ 270,820

$ 5,143 $ 5,143 $ 1,962

5,415 5,415 5,252
- - 6,765

- -
18,916

10,558 10358 32,895

Fund Balances

Restricted

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

365

365 $

86,012

96,570 $

86,377 237,925

96,935 $ 270,820
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Emanuel County, Georgia
Combining Statement ofRevenues,Expendituresand Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds
For the Year Ended September 30,2012

(With Comparative Totals For the Year Ended Seotenber 30,2011)

Revenues

Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures

Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current:

Public safety

(Deficiency) of Revenues (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources
Transfers in

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances Beginning ofYear

Fund Balances End ofYear

2012 2011

Total Total

Nonmajor Nonmajor
2003 Chip Enhanced Special Revenue Special Revenue

Grant 911 Funds Funds

$ 388,477 $ 388,477 $ 369,659
377,680

89

388,477 388,477 747,428

490,219 490,219 761,623

(101,742) (101,742) (14,195)

131,956 131,956 102,751

-
30,214 30,214 88,556

365 55,798 56,163 149,369

$ 365 $ 86,012 $ 86,377 $ 237,925
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Emanuel County, Georgia
2003Chip Grant Fund

Comparative Balance Sheet
September 30,2012 and2011

2012 2011

Assets $ 365 $ 365
Cash and cash equivalents " =======

Fund Balances 2 36^ $ 3^5
Restricted for capital outlay ====== ============
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Emanuel County, Georgia
2003Chip GrantFund

StatementofChanges in FundBalances
For the YearEnded September 30,2012

(With Comparative ActualAmountsfor The Year Ended September 30,2011)

Fund Balances Beginning ofYear JS 365 _$ 365

Fund Balances End ofYear $ 365 S 365

61



Assets

Accounts receivable

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued expenditures

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances

Restricted for public safety

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

Emanuel County, Georgia
Emergency 911 Fund

Comparative Balance Sheet
September 30,2012 and2011

62

2012 2011

S 96,570 S 63,012

5,143 $ 1,962
5,415 5,252

10,558 7,214

86,012 55,798

$ 96370 $ 63,012



Emanuel County, Georgia
Emergency 911 Fund

ScheduleofRevenues, Expendituresand
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended September 30,2012
(With Comparative ActualAmounts for TheYear Ended September 30,2011)

Revenues

Charges for services

Expenditures
Current:

Public safety

(Deficiency) of Revenues (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources
Transfers in

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances Beginning ofYear

Fund Balances End of Year

Original
Budget

Final

Budget

2012

Actual

Variance

With Final

Budget

2011

Actual

S 475358 $ 475,558 $ 388,477 $ (87,081) $ 369,659

475358 475358

63

490,219 (14,661) 472,410

(101,742) (101,742) (102,751)

131,956 131,956 102,751

30,214 S 30,214 -

55.798 55,798

s 86,012 5I 55,798



Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments

Sales taxes receivable

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities

Accrued expenditures

Fund Balances

Restrictedfor capital outlay

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

Emanuel County, Georgia
SPLOSTFund

Comparative Balance Sheet
September 30,2012 and 2011

64

2012 2011

S 1,627,539 $ 4,326,753
1,013,081

480,030 498,075

$ 3,120,650 $ 4,824,828

$ 27,742

3,120,650 4,797,086

$ 3,120,650 $ 4,824,828



Emanuel County, Georgia
SPLOSTFund

Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances

For the YearsEnded September 30,2012 and 2011

Revenues

Sales taxes

Intergovernmental
Investment earnings

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current:

Public works

Intergovernmental
Capital Outlay
Debt Service:

Principal
Interest

Bond issuance costs

Total Expenditures

(Deficiency) of Revenues (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources
Issuance of bonds

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances Beginning of Year

Fund Balances End of Year

65

2012 2011

$ 2,762,333 $ 2,724,807
72,500
9,805 21,502

2,844,638 2,746,309

20316
2,227,657

478,179
295,392
605,781

1,734,950
59,772

1,623,866
181,504

48,834

4,521,074 2,755,377

(1,676,436)

(1,676,436)

4,797,086

(9,068)

1,560,000

1,550,932

3,246,154

$ 3,120,650 $ 4,797,086



Emanuel County, Georgia
DevelopmentAuthority ofEmanuel County

andtheCity ofSwainsboro Fund
Comparative Statement ofNetAssets

September 30,2012and2011

Assets

Current Assets:

Cashand cash equivalents
Receivables:

Notes

Interfund

Landand buildingheld for resale

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:

Notes receivable

Total Assets

Liabilities

Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Interfundpayable

Total Current Liabilities

Net Assets

Unrestricted

66

2012

822,797 $

4,222
57,886

1,236,170

2,121,075

2011

695,889

4,222

57,886
1,205,634

1,963,631

37,800 37,800

2,158,875 2,001,431

14,060
2,071

516,705

1,696

2,012

416,705

532,836 420,413

$ 1,626,039 $ 1381,018



Emanuel County, Georgia
DevelopmentAuthority ofEmanuel County

andtheCity ofSwainsboro Fund
Comparative Statement ofRevenues,

Expenses andChanges inFundNetAssets
For the Years EndedSeptember30,2012 and2011

Operating Revenues
Miscellaneous

Operating Expenses
Personal services

Purchased services and supplies
Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses

Operating (Loss)

Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)
Operating grants
Capital grants
Investment earnings
Gain(loss)on propertysales
Revolving loan

Total Non-operating Revenues (Expenses)

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets Beginning ofYear

Net Assets End of Year

67

2012 2011

$ 20,212 $; 1,020

73,602

611,249

70,649

1,826,703
1,085

684,851 1,898,437

(664,639) (1,897,417)

287,911
436,844

895

(15,990)

831,607

5,145

42,183
490,990

709,660 1,369,925

45,021 (527,492)

1381,018 2,108,510

$ 1,626,039 $ 1381,018



Emanuel County, Georgia
Development Authority ofEmanuel County

andtheCityofSwainsboro Fund
Comparative Statement ofCash Flows

For the Years EndedSeptember 30,2012 and2011

Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from customers

Cashpayments for personal services
Cashpayments for goodsandservices

Net Cash Providedby (Used in) OperatingActivities

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Operating grants
Increase (decrease) in interfund loanpayable

Net Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and
Related Financing Activities
Capital grants
Other capital item

Total Cash Flows from Capital and
Related Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Investment earnings

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash
and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents Beginning ofYear

Cash and Cash Equivalents End ofYear

Reconciliation of Operating (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities

Operating (Loss)

Adjustments:
Depreciation

(Increase) Decrease in Assets:
Notes receivable

Land and building held for resale

Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities

68

2012 2011

20,212 $ 40,407
(73343) (69,487)

(629,421) (1,454384)

(682.752) (1,483,464)

287,911 1369,925

100,000 -

387,911 1369,925

436,844

(15,990) -

420,854

895 360,640

126,908 247,101

695,889 448,788

$ 822,797 $ 695,889

(664,639) $ (1,897,417)

1,085

(30,536)
39387

374,276

12,364
59

(1,957)
1.162

$ (682.752) S (1,483,464)



Emanuel County, Georgia
Emanuel County DevelopmentAuthority Fund

Comparative Statement ofNetAssets
September 30,2012 and 2011

Assets

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables:

Notes

Interest

Interfund

Land and building held for resale

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets

Notes receivable

Total Assets

Liabilities

Current Liabilities:

Accrued payables
Interfundpayables
Notespayable
Bonds payable

Total Current Liabilities:

Long-term Liabilities (Net ofCurrent Portion):
Notes payable
Bonds payable

Total Long-term Liabilities:

Total liabilities

Net Assets

Unrestricted

69

2012 2011

206 $ 206

131,550 501300

4,651 6,942

516,705 416,705

90,711 90,711

743,823 1,015,864

305,000 486,568

1,048,823 1302,432

4,650

211,161

51,551
80,000

4,650

211,161
51300

350,000

347,362 617,111

305,000

51368
385,000

305,000 436,568

652,362 1,053,679

$ 396,461 $ 448,753



Operating Revenues
Charges for services

Operating Expenses
Personal services

Operating Income (Loss)

Non-operating Expenses
Interest expense

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets Beginning ofYear

Net Assets End ofYear

Emanuel County, Georgia
Emanuel County Development Authority Fund

Comparative Statement ofRevenues,
Expenses andChanges inFundNetAssets

FortheYears Ended September 30,2012and2011

2012

70

33,467 $

52,292

(18,825)

(33,467)

(52,292)

448,753

396,461

2011

40,857

40,857

(40,857)

448,753

448,753



Emanuel County, Georgia
Emanuel County DevelopmentAuthority Fund

Comparative Statement of Cash Flows
Forthe Years Ended September 30,2012 and2011

Increase (Decrease) in CashandCash Equivalents

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from customers

Cash payments for personal services

Net CashProvided by (Used in) Operating Activities

Cash Flows from NoncapitalFinancing Activities
(Increase) decrease innotes receivable
(Increase) decrease ininterfund loan receivable

Net Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and
Related Financing Activities
Interest

Principal on bonds payable
Principal on notes payable

Net CashProvided by (Used in) Capital and Related
Financing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash
and Cash Equivalents

Cashand Cash EquivalentsBeginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents End ofYear

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities

Operating Income (Loss)

(Increase) Decrease in Assets:
Interest receivable

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities
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2012 2011

$ 35,758 $
(52,292)

40,857

(16,534) 40,857

551,318
(100,000)

-

451318 -

(33,467)
(350,000)

(51317)

(40,857)

(434,784) (40,857)

206 206

206 $ 206

$ (18,825) $ 40,857

2,291

$ (16334) $ 40,857



Emanuel County, Georgia
Emanuel County Revolving Loan Fund

Comparative Statement ofNetAssets
September 30,2012 and 2011

2012 2011

Assets

Current Assets: 173
Cash and cash equivalents *

Noncurrent Assets: 490,990
Notesreceivable Hyu> •

„ . A . 491,163 491,163
Total Assets -2±=— 2

Net Assets 491,163 $ 491,163
Unrestricted =====
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Emanuel County, Georgia
Emanuel County Revolving Loan Fund
ComparativeStatementofRevenues,

and Changes inFund Net Assets
For the Years EndedSeptember 30,2012 and2011

2012 2011

Non-operating Revenues
Investment earnings $ - $ 235

Net Assets Beginning ofYear 491,163 490,928

Net Assets End ofYear $ 491,163 $ 491,163
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Emanuel County, Georgia
Emanuel County Revolving Loan Fund
Comparative Statement ofCash Flows

For the YearsEnded September 30,2012 and 2011

Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Transfers out

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Investment earnings

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash
and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents Beginning ofYear

Cash and Cash Equivalents End ofYear

Reconciliation of Operating (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities

Operating (Loss)

(Increase) Decrease in Assets:
Accounts receivables

Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities:
Accrued expenses payable

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities
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2012

173

173 $

2011

(490,990)

235

(490,755)

490,928

173



Tax Commissioner

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Property taxes receivables

Total Assets

Liabilities

Intergovernmental payable

Probate Court

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Liabilities

Due to others

Clerk of Superior Court

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Liabilities

Due to others

Emanuel County, Georgia
Combining Statement ofChanges in Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities

Agency Funds
For the Year Ended September 30,2012

Balance

October 1,2011 Additions

Balance

Deductions Eliminations September 30,2012

31,950 $ 12,882,706
391,474 12,799,264

12,857,608 $
13,190,738

$ 423,424 $ 25,681,970 $ 26,048,346 _$_

$ 423,424 $ 6,732,455 $ 7,098,831 $

Balance

October 1,2011 Additions

98 $ 71,619 $ 71,682

$ 98 $ 71,289 $ 71,352 $

Balance

October 1,2011 Additions Deductions Eliminations

139,712 $ 1332,375 $ 1,046,823 $

$ 139,712 $ 1,551,769 $ 1,066,217 $

75

57,048

$ 57,048

$ 57,048

Balance

September 30,2012

$ 35

$ 35

Balance

September 30,2012

$ 625,264

$ 625,264

(continued)



Thomas County, Georgia
Combining Statement ofChanges in Fiduciaary Assets and Liabilities

Agency Funds
For the Year Ended September 30,2012

(continued)

Magistrate Court
Balance

October 1,2011 Additions 1deductions Eliminations

$

Sepi

$

$

Balance

tember 30,2012

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 99

$ 99

Balance

October 1,2011

$ 54,478

$ 517,049 $

$

]

517,045

516,496

Deductions

103

Liabilities

Due to others $ 516,500

Additions

$

Eliminations

$

103

Sheriff Sep

$

$

$

Sep

$

$

$

$

Balance

tember 30,2012

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Due from others

$

$

$

118,744

1,000

119,744

131,775

Additions

$ 110,383 62,839

1,000

Total Assets

Liabilities

Due to others

$

$

<

$

54,478

54,478

Balance

October 1,2011

226,337

391,474

$

$

110,383

122,414

$

$

Eliminations

$

63,839

63,839

Totals Deductions

Balance

itember 30,2012

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Property taxes receivable
Due from others

$

$

$

$

15,122,493

12,799,264

1,000

27,922,757

6,732,455

2,271,333

9,003,788

$ 14,603,541

13,190,738

745,289

1,000

Total Assets $

$

$

617,811

423,424
194,387

617,811

$

$

$

27,794,279

7,098,831
1,776,479

8,875,310

$ _ 746,289

Liabilities

Intergovernmental payable
Due to others

$ - 57,048

689,241

Total Liabilities $ - 746,289
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EMANUEL COUNTY, GEORGIA
SCHEDULE OF PROJECTS CONSTRUCTED WITHSPECIAL PURPOSE LOCALSALESTAXPROCEEDS

September 30,2012

PROJECTS UNDER 2005 REFERENDUM
Industrial Development
Recreation and Leisure
Road Improvements
Solid Waste

Road and Construction Equipment
Rural Fire Department
Emergency Medical Services
Public Safety (911 Phase II Equipment)
Jail

Firetrucks

Parks

Interest

County Buildings
City of Swainsboro
City of TwinCity
City of Adrian
City of Garfield
City of Nunez
City of Oak Park
CityofStillmore
City of Summertown
Debt Service - Courthouse

EXPENDITURES

ORIGINAL CURRENT ESTIMATED
ESTIMATED ESTIMATED PRIOR CURRENT PERCENTAGE

COST COST YEARS YEAR TOTAL OF COMPLETION

$ 1,190,000 $ 1,190,000 $ 1,101,200 $ $ 1,101.200 93%

500,000 500,000 235,431 235.431 47%
1,303,887 1,303.887 992,317 992,317 76%

650.000 650,000 764.336 764.336 100%

350,000 350,000 1.407.595 1,407,595 100%

350.000 350,000 211.305 211,305 60%
300,000 300.000 337.550 337,550 113%
500,000 500,000 524,678 524,678 105%

2.275.000 2,275.000 2,351,741 2,351,741 100%
786,000 786,000 774,932 774,932 100%
300.000 300,000 191,033 191,033 100%

1,101,004 1,101.004 1.201,266 1,201,266 109%
300,000 300,000 325.909 325,909 109%

3,000,000 3,000,000 2,176,585 2,176,585 73%

750,000 750,000 793.320 793,320 100%
50,000 50,000 53,090 53,090 100%
50.000 50,000 53,090 53,090 100%
50,000 50,000 53,090 53,090 100%

50.000 50,000 53.090 53,090 100%
50,000 50,000 53,090 53,090 100%
50,000 50.000 53.090 53,090 100%

997,473 997.473 562,839 562.839 56%

$14,953,364 $14,953,364 $14,270,577 $ $ 14,270.577 93%

Current SPLOST Expenditures (above) $
SPLOT Bond Principal
Bond Issuance Costs

Total SPLOT Expenditures (page 17) $
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EMANUEL COUNTY. GEORGIA
SCHEDULE OF PROJECTS CONSTRUCTED WITH SPECIAL PURPOSE LOCALSALES TAX PROCEEDS

September 30.2012

PROJECTS UNDER 2010 REFERENDUM
General Obligation Bonds-principal
Hospital AuthorityDebt
Bonds-County Projects
Interest

City of Adrian
City of Garfield
City of Nunez
City of Oak Park
City of Stillmore
City of Summertown
City of Swainsboro
City of Twin City
County Buildings
Solid Waste

Jail

Recreation and Leisure

Public Safety
Emergency Medical Services
Rural Fire Department
County Buildings
Economic Development

EXPENDITURES

ORIGINAL CURRENT ESTIMATED

ESTIMATED ESTIMATED PRIOR CURRENT PERCENTAGE

COST COST YEARS YEAR TOTAL OF COMPLETION

$ 828,379 $ 828,379 $ $ - $ 0%

4,775,062 4.775.062 1,008,626 1,008,626 21%

1.560.000 1.560.000 0%

1,000,000 1.000,000 0%

232,996 232,996 16,431 16,431 7%

66,000 66.000 7,764 7,764 12%

63,008 63,008 7,608 7,608 12%

151,402 151,402 12,196 12,196 8%

292,832 292,832 19,537 19,537 7%

61,378 61,378 7,523 7,523 12%

2,728,866 2.728.866 400,108 400,108 15%

694,456 694,456 100,684 100,684 14%

100.000 100,000 67,468 67,468 67%

100,000 100,000 59.404 59,404 59%

2,000 2,000 992 992 50%

250,000 250,000 199,007 199.007 80%

400,000 400,000 240,929 240,929 60%

50,000 50,000 17,957 17,957 36%

100,000 100,000 81,939 81,939 82%

1,085,442 1,085.442 0%

478,179 478.179 478,179 478,179 100%

$15,020,000 $15,020,000 $

>T Expenditures (above)

$

$

2,726,352 $

2,726.352

2,726,352 5%

Current SPLOS

SPLOST Bond Principal 1,734,950
Bond Issuance Costs 59,772
Total SPLOST Expenditures (page 65) $ 4,521,074
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAUDITINGSTANDARDS

The Commissioners of Roads and Revenues

Emanuel County, Georgia

Ihave audited the financial statements ofthe governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely
presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Emanuel County,
Georgia, as of and for the year ended September 30,2012, which collectively comprise the Emanuel County,
Georgia's basic financial statements and have issued my report thereon dated March 13,2013. Iconducted my audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing my audit, Iconsidered Emanuel County, Georgia's internal control over financial
reporting as abasis for designing my auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing my opinions on the financial
statements but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Emanuel County, Georgia's
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion on the effectiveness ofthe
Emanuel County, Georgia's internal control over financial reporting.

Adeficiency ininternal control exists when the design oroperation ofa control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course ofperforming their assigned functions, to prevent, ordetect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. Amaterial weakness isadeficiency, oracombination ofdeficiencies, in internal
control such that there isa reasonable possibility that amaterial misstatement ofthe entity's financial statements will
not beprevented, ordetected and corrected ona timely basis.

My consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting
that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. Idid not identify any deficiencies in
internal control over financial reporting that Iconsider to be material weaknesses, asdefined above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Emanuel County, Georgia's financial statements are free of
material misstatement, Iperformed tests ofits compliance with certain provisions oflaws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have adirect and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion oncompliance with those provisions wasnotan
objective ofmy audit, and accordingly, I do not express such an opinion. The results ofmy tests disclosed no
instances ofnoncompliance orother matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
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I notedcertainmatters thatl reported to management of Emanuel County, Georgia>in a separateletterdated March
13,2013.

This report is intended solely for the information and use ofmanagement, county commissioners, others within the
organization, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities arid isnotintended tobeand should notbe
usedby anyoneother than thesespecified parties.

March 13,2013
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